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SYNOPSIS 
 

I) DATES & EVENTS 

Sr. 

No. 

Dates Particulars 

1.  01st March, 

1989/08th May, 

1992 

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited the 

Applicant/Transferee Company was incorporated as a 

Private Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956, 

on 01st March, 1989. in the name of Pharmaids 

Pharmaceuticals Private Limited in the State of Telangana. 

The name of the Company has been changed to its present 

name i.e. Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited and obtained 

a fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated 08th May, 1992 

consequent on change of name from the Registrar of 

Companies, Telangana. The CIN of the Company is 

L52520TG1989TLC009679.  

2.  28thAugust, 2006 Emergent Bio Naturals Limited Transferor Company has 
incorporated on 28th August,2006. The CIN of the Company 
is U01122TG2006PLC050994. 

3.  18th July, 2018 Board of Directors of the Transferee Company approved the 

proposed scheme of  Amalgamation  

4.  17th  January, 

2019 

Copy of the No Objection letter received from the BSE 

Limited Vide there Letter.no CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 

Dated, January 17,2019 

5.  21th January, 

2019 

Company Scheme Application 

No.CA(CAA)No.81/230/HDB/2019 of Transferor company 

filed for dispensing for holding of the meeting of the equity 

shareholders and Unsecured Creditors. 

6.  21th January, 2019 Company Scheme Application 

No.CA(CAA)No.81/230/HDB/2019 of Transferee 

company filed for convening and holding of the meeting of 

the Equity shareholders and dispensation for convening and 

holding meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Petitioner 

Company. 

7.  20h March, 2019 The Hon’ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench admitted the 

Company Application and ordered Summons for Directions 

8.  08th April,2019 Notice convening meeting of Equity Shareholders together 

with a copy of Scheme of Amalgamation, Explanatory 
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Statement, proxy form sent by Courier/ Email addressed to 

each of the Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company.  

9.  06th April, 2019 Notice of the meeting is published in Business Standard 

(English Daily) and Nava Telangana (Telugu Daily) 

10.  10h April, 2019 Notice Served Upon the Regional Director, South Easter 

Region, 3rd Floor, Corporate Bhawan, Tattiannaram, Nagole, 

Bandlaguda. 

11.  10th April, 2019 Notice served upon  BSE Limited, Market Operations Dept, 

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 

12.  10th April, 2019 Notice served upon Official Liquidator, 2nd Floor, Corporate 

Bhawan, GSI Post, Tattiannaram, Nagole, Bandlaguda-

Hyderabad-500068 

13.  10th April, 2019 Notice Served upon the Assessing Officer, IT Towers, 

Masabtank-Hyderabad 

14.  10th April, 2019 Notice Served upon The Registrar of Companies, 2nd Floor, 

Corporate Bhawan, GSI Post, Tattiannaram, Nagole, 

Bandlaguda-Hyderabad-500068 

15.  10th April, 2019 Notice Served upon The Securities & Exchange Board of 

India, C4-A, G-Block-Kurla Complex, Bandra(E) Mumbai, 

India-400051 

16.  01th May, 2019 Affidavit for services of dispatch of notices and NCLT 

convened meeting publications submitted by the 

chairperson of the meeting by Ms Kopala Sharraf 

17.  17th May,2019 Affidavit for Report of Result of NCLT Convened   Meeting 

by NCLT on May 17th,2019 by the Chariperson of the 

meeting 

18.  11th May, 2019 Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company approved 

the Scheme of Amalgamation at the National company Law 

Tribunal (NCLT) convened meeting.  

19.  11th May, 2019 Provision of the Section 230 (6) of the Companies Act of 

getting approval of 3/4th in value of Equity Shareholders of 

the Petitioner Company for approving the Scheme of 

Amalgamation complied with.  
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FORM NO. CAA.5 

 (Pursuant to Section 230 and rule 15(1)) 

       BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL BENCH, AT HYDERABAD 

COMPANY SCHEME PETITION NO. CA(CAA)No.81/230/HDB/2019 

CONNECTED WITH COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION 

NO.CA(CAA)No.81/230/HDB/2019 
 

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 

AND 

In the matter of application under Sections 230 to 

232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

                                           AND  

In the matter of Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals 

Limited, a company incorporated under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956  

AND 

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation of 

Emergent Bio Naturals Limited (‘the Transferor 

Company’), WITH Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals 

Limited (‘the Transferee Company’) 

Emergent Bio Naturals Limited 
(a Company incorporated under the 
Companies Act,1956, having its  
Registetred office at Flat.No.503 
Amrutha Estates,Himayath Nagar, 
Hyderabad-500029,Telangana.                       ….the Applicant/Transferor Company 
 
 

 

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited, 

a company incorporated under the  

Companies Act, 1956, having its  

registered office at 4-4-211/212/3 

1st Floor, Inderbagh, Sultan Bazar 

                                                                   …. The Petitioner/Transferee Company 

 



To, 

THE HON’BLE MEMBER (J) AND OTHER PUISNE MEMBERS OF THIS 

HON’BLE BENCH HYDERABAD. 

THE HUMBLE PETITION OF THE PETITIONER ABOVE NAMED TO 

SANCTION A SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN EMERGENT BIO 

NATURALS LIMITED TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH PHARMAIDS 

PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED, THE PETITIONER / TRANSFEREE COMPANY  

 

The object of this Petition is to obtain sanction of this Hon’ble Bench to the Scheme of 

Amalgamation between Emergent Bio Naturals Limited (‘EBNL’ or ‘the Transferor 

Company’), with Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited (‘’PPL’ or ‘the Transferee 

Company’) 

INCORPORATION DETAILS OF PETITIONER / TRANSFEREE COMPANY 

1.  Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited (PPL) the Petitioner/Transferee Company was 

incorporated as a Private Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956, on 01 

March, 1989 in the name of Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Private Limited in the State 

of Telangana. The name of the Company has been changed to its present name i.e. 

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited and obtained a fresh Certificate of Incorporation 

dated 08th May, 1992 consequent on change of name from the Registrar of 

Companies, Telangana. The CIN of the Company is L52520TG1989TLC009679. A 

copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Petitioner /Transferee 

Company now in force is annexed and marked as Exhibit –A 

2. REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF PETITIONER / TRANSFEREE COMPANY 

The Registered office of the Petitioner/Transferee Company is at presently situated at 

4-4-211/212/3, 1ST Floor, Inderbagh, Sultan Bazar, Hyderabad-500095, Telangana and 

is within the jurisdiction of this Hon’ble NCLT Bench, Hyderabad. 

3. OBJECTS AND NATURE OF BUSINEESS OF PETITIONER / TRANFEREE 

COMPANY 

The objects of the PPL/Transferee Company are as set out in its Memorandum and 

Articles of Association are inter alia as follows:  



● To carry on manufacture and/or business of Chemists, Druggists, Chemicals 

drysalters, importers, exporters and dealers in cosmetics, pharmaceuticals and 

medical preparations. Under all systems such as Ayurvedic, Allopathy, Unani 

Veterinary and Homeopathy.  

●To prepare, formulate and compound proprietary medicine, articles, chemicals and 

scientific equipment’s, soaps, cleaning compounds and detergents.   

●To Manufacture and deal in anatomical orthopedic and surgical instruments and      

appliances and providers of all requisites of hospitals, patients and invalids.  

 The Applicant/ Transferee Company is a Public Company and its shares are listed on 

BSE Limited (“BSE”) 

SHARE CAPTIAL DETAILS OF PETITIONER / TRANSFEREE COMPANY   

4. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Share Capital of 
Petitioner/Transferee Company as per the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2018 is as under: - 

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited  

Share Capital Amount in Rs. 

Authorised Share Capital  

40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,00,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital  

34,05,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,40,55,000 

Out of the above paid up share capital 42,415 

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each are calls in arrear 

 

 

4,24,150 

Amount as shown in the audited Financial 

Statement for the year ended 31st March,2018 

3,36,30,850 

 

A copy of the Audited Balance sheet of the Petitioner/Transferee Company as at 31st 

March, 2018 now in force is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit-B 

 



 Subsequent to 31st March, 2018, there has been no change in the aforesaid share 

capital of PPL/Transferee Company.  

 

5. LATEST FINANCIAL POSITION OF PETITIONER / TRANSFEREE 

COMPANY 
 

The Accounts of the Applicant /Transferee Company have been audited and adopted 

by the Shareholders up to 31st March, 2018. I say that the Audited Financial Statement 

as at 31st March, 2018 contains the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and the 

Board of Directors and Auditors Report thereon. As is clear from the said Report, the 

Applicant /Transferee Company has maintained proper books of accounts as 

required by law. The Company has prepared Un- Audited Financial Statement for the 

period ended on 30th June, 2018. A copy of the said financial statement is annexed 

hereto and marked as Exhibit-C. The said Un- Audited Accounts of the Applicant/ 

Transferee Company as at 30th June, 2018 indicate the latest financial position of the 

Applicant/ Transferee Company as under: -  

Apart from the Current Liabilities which are incurred and disposed off in the normal 

course of business, the Transferee Company has other Non-Current Liabilities 2.52 

lakhs. 

The details of Shareholders Fund as on 30th June, 2018 are as under: - 

                                                               (Amount in lakhs) 

Paid Up Share 

Capital  

336.31 

Reserves & Surplus  (235.69) 

Total  100.62 

Represented by  

Fixed assets ( Tangible & Intangible)  0.20 

Investments 0.00 

Deferred Tax Assets  0.03 

Loans And Advances 0.00 



Other Non-Current Assets 51.50 

Current Assets 73.55 

Less  Non-Current Liabilities 2.52 

Less Current Liabilities 22.14 

Excess of Assets over Liabilities  100.62 

 

 Subsequent to the date of the aforesaid Audited Accounts and as on date, there has 

been no other substantial change in the Capital Structure or the Financial Position of 

the Applicant/Transferee Company except those arising or resulting from the usual 

course of business. 

6. INCORPORATION DETAILS OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY 

Emergent Bio Naturals Limited the EBNL/Transferor Company was incorporated 

as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956, on 20th August, 

2006 in the name of Emergent Bio Naturals Limited in the State of Telangana. The 

CIN of the Company is U01122TG2006PLC050994. A copy of the latest 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the EBNL/Transferor Company now 

in force is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit-A to the affidavit in support of 

Company Scheme Application filed by the Transferor Company in this Hon’ble 

National Company Law Tribunal. 

7. REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY  

The Registered office of the EBNL/ Transferor Company is presently situated at 503, 

Amrutha Estate, Himayathnagar Hyderabad -500029, Telangana and is within the 

jurisdiction of this Hon’ble NCLT Bench, Hyderabad. 

8. OBJECTS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

The main objects of the EBNL/Transferor Company are as set out in its Memorandum 

and Articles of Association are inter alia as follows: - 

 To undertake, promote ,assist, procure or otherwise acquire or engage in all kinds , of 

developmental work in the fields of Biology, Biotechnology, Biochemistry including 

molecular and cell biology for developing manufacturing , producing, processing, 



preparing, treating, buying, selling, importing, exporting, distributing, marketing and 

generally dealing in all kinds, descriptions and varieties of drugs and 

pharmaceuticals, medical diagnostics kits, vaccines, anti-bodies, Virulent bacteria, 

fomenters and other industrial bio-products such as enzymes and gums. 
 

 To carry on the business of plantation Farming, Agriculture, Raising Nurseries, Tissue 

culture, Horticulture, Sen culture and Cultivation of mushroom growing in all their 

respective social forestry and to grow, produce, manufacture, process, prepare, refine, 

extract, pulverize, manipulate, hydrolyze, deodorize, grind bleach, hydrogenate, buy, 

sell or otherwise deal in all kinds of products, derivatives and oil seeds, plants, 

medicines, flowers, vegetables, fruits, oils, foods and food products, bio fuels of every 

description and to deal, trade, import and export of every agricultural and other 

products and oil resins and of medicinal and aromatic plants and herbs of every 

agricultural and other products to extract produce, manufacture essential oils and 

medicines and cosmetics of every description. 
 

 To carry on the business of research, design, develop, prepare and supply of technical 

knowhow and to act as consultants, technical consultants and advisory services in the 

fields of Biology, Biotechnology and Biochemistry. 
 

  The Transferor Company is an Unlisted Public Limited Company and its shares are 

not listed on any stock exchange. 
 

9. SHARE CAPTIAL DETAILS OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY   

The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Share Capital of the Transferor 

Company as per the Audited Financial Statement as at 31st March, 2018 is as under: 

Share Capital Amount in 

Rs. 

Authorised Share Capital  

35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,50,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital  

24,66,334 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,46,63,340 

 



Subsequent to the above Financial Statement date there is change in the Capital 

Structure of Transferor Company on account of Issue of Bonus shares of 9,86,533 

equity shares of Rs.10 each on 04th June, 2018. After issue of bonus the said equity 

shares the paid up equity share capital of the company stand increased to Rs. 

3,45,28,670/- divided into 34,52,670 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up. 

A copy of the Audited Financial Statement of the Transferor Company as at 31st 

March, 2018 as adopted by its shareholders is annexed and marked as Exhibit-Bto the 

affidavit in support of Company Scheme Application filed by the Transferor 

Company in this Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal. 

10. LATEST FINANCIAL POSITION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY   

The Accounts of the EBNL/Transferor Company have been audited up to 31st March, 

2018. I say that the Audited Financial Statement as at 31st March 2018 contains the 

Profit and Loss Account and the Board of Directors and Auditors Report thereon. As 

is clear from the said Report, Transferor Company has maintained proper Books of 

Accounts as required by law. The Company has prepared Un- Audited Financial 

Statement of the Transferor /Transferee Company as at 30.06.2018, a copy of the said 

Financial Statement is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit-C indicate the latest 

financial position of the Transferor Company as under:  

i.  Transferor Company has not issued any Debentures. 

ii. Apart from the Current Liabilities, which are incurred and disposed off in the normal 

course of business. 

iii. The details of Shareholders Fund are as under on 30.06.2018 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Paid up Capital 345.29 

Reserves & Surplus 408.20 

Total 753.49 

Represented by  

Fixed Assets 55.74 



 

                                                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subsequent to the date of the aforesaid audited financial statements, there has been 

no other substantial change in the Capital Structure or Financial Position of the 

Transferor Company except those arising or resulting from the usual course of 

business. A copy of the Un-Audited Financial Statements of Transferor/Transferee 

Company as on 30th June, 2018 now in force is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit-C 

to the affidavit in support of Company Scheme Application filed by the Transferor 

Company in this Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal. 

The object of this application is to ultimately file a Petition and obtain sanction of this 

Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench, to a Scheme of 

Amalgamation whereby and hereunder Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited shall 

amalgamate with Emergent Bio Naturals Limited. The copy of the Scheme of 

Amalgamation is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit-D 

Mulkala and Associates., Chartered Accountants having their office at 6-3-1090/C-4, 

Above Andhra Bank, Raj Bhavan Road, Hyderabad-500082., were  entrusted with 

the work of determining Share swap ratio and have examined the relevant facts and 

have submitted their report dated 05th July, 2018 in that behalf. I crave leave to refer 

to and rely upon the said report dated 05th July, 2018 of the Chartered Accountant 

when produced is annexed in Exhibit-E 

Messrs Inventure Merchant Banker Services Pvt Ltd, a Merchant Banker Registered 

with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) having their corporate office at 2nd 

Non-Current 

Investment 

0.00 

Other Non-Current Assets 666.05 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 0.00 

Loans and Advances                          0.00 

Current Assets  36.62 

Less Non-Current Liabilities  0.00 

Less Current Liabilities 4.92 

Excess of Assets over Liabilities  753.49 



Floor, Viraj Tower, Andheri Flyover, Western Expressway, Andheri(East), Mumbai-

400069 Maharashtra., were entrusted with the work of giving fairness opinion on the 

Valuation report issued by Messrs. Mulkala and Assoicates., Chartered Accountants, 

the Valuer and have examined the relevant facts and have submitted their opinion 

dated 05th July, 2018 in that behalf. I crave leave to refer to and rely upon the said 

Fairness Opinion report dated 05th July, 2018 of the Merchant banker when produced 

is annexed in Exhibit-F 

The Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company are as under:  

 Emergent Bio Natural Limited 

1. Mr. Dasi Rakesh Reddy 

2. Mr. P.Bhushan Rao 

3. Mr. Bipin Kumar Shah 
 

  Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited  
 

1. Mr. Dr Ghisulal Jain 

2. Ms. Seema Jain 

3. Mr. Mahendra K Ranka 

4. Mr. Sudheer Anand 

 
11. BENEFITS OF SCHEME 

This Scheme of Amalgamation provides for the amalgamation of the Transferor 

Company with the Transferee Company pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other 

relevant provisions of the Company Act, 2013. The amalgamation of the Transferor 

Company with the Transferee Company would inter alia have the following:  

 

a) With the proposed amalgamation of Transferor Company into Transferee 

Company improves the visibility business of the Pharmaceuticals and 

Ayurvedic business in the market. 

b) The consolidation of operations of the Transferor Company and the Transferee 

Company by way of amalgamation will lead to a more efficient utilization of 

capital, administrative and operational rationalization and promote 

organizational efficiencies. It will prevent cost duplication that can erode 

financial efficiencies of the holding structure and the resultant operations will 

be more cost-efficient with the achievement of greater economies of scale, 



reduction in overheads and improvement in various other operating 

parameters. 
 

c) The amalgamation will result in the formation of a stronger company with a 

larger capital and asset base and enable the combined business to be pursued 

more conveniently and advantageously. The amalgamation will have beneficial 

results for the amalgamating companies, their stakeholders and all concerned.  
 

d) Greater integration and greater financial strength and flexibility for the 

amalgamated entity, which would result in maximizing overall shareholder 

value, and will improve the competitive position of the combined entity.  
 

e) Improved organizational capability and leadership, arising from the pooling of 

human capital that has the diverse skills, talent and vast experience to compete 

successfully in an increasingly competitive industry. 

f) Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, 

rationalization, standardisation and simplification of business processes, and the 

elimination of duplication, and rationalization of administrative expenses. 

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company have considered and proposed the amalgamation of the entire 

undertaking and business of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company 

in order to benefit the stakeholders of both the companies. Accordingly, the Board of 

Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have formulated 

this Scheme of Amalgamation for the transfer and vesting of the entire Undertaking 

(as defined in the Scheme of Amalgamation) and business of the Transferor Company 

with and into the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 

Section 232 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

12. BRIEF SUMMARY OF SCHEME 

A brief Summary of the Scheme of Amalgamation is as under: - 

(i) The Appointed Date as per the Scheme is 1st April, 2018. 

 

 



(ii) VESTING OF AN UNDERTAKINGS 

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, 

the Undertaking, pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT under and in 

accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Act, shall stand transferred to and be vested in or be deemed to have been 

transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, as a going concern without any 

further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing to be made, done or executed so as to 

become, as and from the Appointed Date, the Undertaking of the Transferee Company 

by virtue of and in the manner provided in this Scheme. 

(iii) ASSETS 

All the assets and properties comprised in the Transferor Company of whatsoever 

nature and whosesoever situated, shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 

and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act or deed, 

be and stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company or be deemed to be 

transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as a going concern so as to 

become the assets and properties of the Transferee Company. 

Without prejudice to the provisions of above Clause, in respect of such of the assets 

and properties of the Transferor Company as are movable in nature or incorporeal 

property or are otherwise capable of transfer by manual delivery or by endorsement 

and/or delivery, the same shall be so transferred by the Transferor Company and 

shall, upon such transfer, become the assets and properties of the Transferee Company 

as an integral part of the Undertaking, without requiring any separate deed or 

instrument or conveyance for the same. 

In respect of movables other than those dealt with in above Clause including sundry 

debts, receivables, bills, credits, loans and advances of the Transferor Company, if any, 

whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank balances, 

investments, earnest money and deposits with any Governmental Authority or with 

any Company or other person, the same shall on and from the Appointed Date stand 

transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company. 



All interests of the Transferor Company in their respective subsidiaries and associates 

as on the Appointed Date will become the interests, subsidiaries and associates of the 

Transferee Company. 

All the licenses, permits, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives, tax 

deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy 

rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred 

upon or held or availed of by the Transferor Company and all rights and benefits that 

have accrued or which may accrue to the Transferor Company, whether before or after 

the Appointed Date, shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and all other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed, 

cost or charge be and stand transferred to and vest in or b be deemed to be transferred 

to and vested in and be available to the Transferee Company so as to become as and 

from the Appointed Date licenses, permits, approvals, permissions, registrations, 

incentives, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, 

leases, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges of the 

Transferee Company and shall remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same 

terms and conditions. 

The Transferor Company shall, if so required, also give notice in such form as it may 

deem fit and proper to the debtors, that pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by 

NCLT under and in accordance with Sections 230 and 232 and all other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Act, the said debtors should pay to the Transferee Company 

the debt, loan or advance or make the same on account of the Transferor Company 

and the right of the Transferor Company to recover or realize the same stands 

extinguished. 

All assets and properties of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date, 

whether or not included in the books of the respective Transferor Company, and all 

assets and properties which are acquired by the Transferor Company on or after the 

Appointed Date but prior to the Effective Date, shall be deemed to be and shall become 

the assets and properties of the Transferee Company, and shall under the provisions 

of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without 



any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be 

deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company upon the 

coming into effect of this Scheme. Provided, however, that no onerous assets shall 

have been acquired by the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date without the 

consent of the Transferee Company as provided for in this Scheme. 

(iv) TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES: 

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date 

all liabilities relating to and comprised in the Transferor Company including all 

secured and unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees or foreign currency), sundry 

creditors, liabilities(including contingent liabilities), duties and obligations and 

undertakings of the Transferor Company of every kind, nature and description 

whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred or utilised for its business 

activities and operations (herein referred to as the "Liabilities"), shall, pursuant to the 

sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT under and in accordance with the provisions of 

Sections 230 to232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any 

further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing, be transferred to and vested in or be 

deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, along with 

any charge, encumbrance, lien or security thereon, and the same shall be assumed by 

the Transferee Company to the extent they are outstanding as on the Effective Date so 

as to become as and from the Appointed Date the liabilities of the Transferee Company 

on the same terms and conditions as were applicable to the Transferor Company, and 

the Transferee Company shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same and further it shall 

not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a party 

to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such Liabilities have arisen in order 

to give effect to the provisions of this Clause. 

All debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company as on the 

Appointed Date, whether or not provided in the books of the respective Transferor 

Company, and all debts and loans raised, and duties, liabilities and obligations 

incurred or which arise or accrue to the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed 

Date till the Effective Date, shall be deemed to be and shall become the debts, loans 



raised, duties, liabilities and obligations incurred by the Transferee Company by 

virtue of this Scheme.  

Where any such debts, loans raised, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor 

Company as on the Appointed Date have been discharged or satisfied by the 

Transferor Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such 

discharge or satisfaction shall be deemed to be for and on account of the Transferee 

Company. 

Loans, advances and other obligations (including any guarantees, letters of credit, 

letters of comfort or any other instrument or arrangement which may give rise to a 

contingent liability in whatever form), if any, due or which may at any time in future 

become due between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall, ipso 

facto, stand discharged and come to an end and there shall be no liability in that behalf 

on any party and appropriate effect shall be given in the books of accounts and records 

of the Transferee Company. 

(v) ENCUMBRANCES:  

The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the Transferor Company to and 

in the Transferee Company under shall be subject to the mortgages and charges, if 

any, affecting the same, as and to the extent hereinafter provided all the existing 

securities, mortgages, charges, encumbrances or liens(the "Encumbrances"), if 

any, as on the Appointed Date and created by the Transferor Company after the 

Appointed Date, over the assets comprised in the Undertaking or any part thereof 

transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme and in so far as 

such Encumbrances secure or relate to liabilities of the Transferor Company, the 

same shall, after the Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such assets or 

any part thereof to which they are related or attached prior to the Effective Date 

and as are transferred to the Transferee Company, and such Encumbrances shall 

not relate or attach to any of the other assets of the Transferee Company, provided 

however that no Encumbrances shall have been created by the Transferor 

Company over its assets after the Appointed Date without the consent of the 

Transferee Company as provided for in this Scheme. 



The existing Encumbrances over the assets and properties of the Transferee 

Company or any part thereof which relate to the liabilities and obligations of the 

Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date shall continue to relate only to such 

assets and properties and shall not extend or attach to any of the assets and 

properties of the Undertaking transferred to and vested in the Transferee 

Company by virtue of this Scheme. 

 

Any reference in any security documents or arrangements (to which the Transferor 

Company are a party) to the Transferor Company and its assets and properties, 

shall be construed as a reference to the Transferee Company and the assets and 

properties of the Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee Company by 

virtue of this Scheme. Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions, the 

Transferor Company and the Transferee Company may execute any instruments 

or documents or do all the acts and deeds as may be considered appropriate, 

including the filing of necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of charge(s), 

with the Registrar of Company to give formal effect to the above provisions, if 

required. 
 

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company alone shall 

be liable to perform all obligations in respect of the Liabilities, which have been 

transferred to it in terms of the Scheme. 

 

It is expressly provided that, no other term or condition of the Liabilities 

transferred to the Transferee Company is modified by virtue of this Scheme except 

to the extent that such amendment is required statutorily or by necessary 

implication. 
 

The provisions of this Scheme shall operate in accordance with the terms of the 

Scheme, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any instrument, 

deed or writing or the terms of sanction or issue or any security document; all of 

which instruments, deeds or writings shall be deemed to stand modified and/or 

superseded by the foregoing provisions. 

 
 



(vi) INTER SE TRANSACTIONS: 

Without prejudice to the provisions of the Scheme, with effect from the Appointed 

Date, all inter-party transactions between the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company shall be considered as intra-party transactions for all 

purposes.  

 

(vii) CONTRACTS, DEEDS etc.: 

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this 

Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements, 

assurances and other instruments of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor 

Company are a party or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company may be 

eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect immediately before the Effective 

Date, shall continue in full force and effect by, for or against or in favour of, as the 

case may be, the Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually 

as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a 

party or beneficiary or oblige or obligor thereto or thereunder.  

 

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the 

fact that vesting of the Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the 

Transferee Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme 

in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law or 

otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including deeds of 

adherence), confirmations or other writings or arrangements with any party to any 

contract or arrangement to which the Transferor Company are a party or any 

writings as may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this 

Scheme. The Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of this Scheme, be 

deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor 

Company and to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred 

to above on the part of the Transferor Company  

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the 

foregoing, it is clarified that upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all 



consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities, powers of 

attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferor Company shall 

without any further act or deed, stand transferred to the Transferee Company, as 

if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the 

Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms 

thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under 

the same shall be available to the Transferee Company. 
 

(viii) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS: 

 

On and from the Appointed Date, all suits, actions, claims and legal proceedings 

by or against the Transferor Company pending and/or arising on or before the 

Effective Date shall be continued and / or enforced as desired by the Transferee 

Company and on and from the Effective Date, shall be continued and / or enforced 

by or against the Transferee Company as effectually and in the same manner and 

to the same extent as if the same had been originally instituted and/or pending 

and/or arising by or against the Transferee Company. On and from the Effective 

Date, the Transferee Company shall have the right to initiate, defend, compromise 

or otherwise deal with any legal proceedings relating to the Undertaking, in the 

same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been initiated by the 

Transferor Company as the case may be, had the Scheme not be made; If any suit, 

appeal or other proceedings relating to the Undertaking, of whatever nature by or 

against the Transferor Company be pending, the same shall not abate or be 

discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of the 

amalgamation of the Undertaking or by anything contained in this Scheme but the 

proceedings maybe continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the 

Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or 

might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor 

Company as if this Scheme had not been made. 

 

 

 



 

(ix) CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 

 

The Transferor Company shall carry on and shall be deemed to have carried on all 

its business and activities as hitherto and shall hold and stand possessed of and 

shall be deemed to have held and stood possessed of the Undertaking on account 

of, and for the benefit of and in trust for, the Transferee Company. 

 

All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company and all 

expenditure or losses arising or incurred (including all taxes, if any, paid or 

accruing in respect of any profits and income) by the Transferor Company shall, 

for all purposes, be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits or income 

or as the case may be, expenditure or losses (including taxes) of the Transferee 

Company. 

 

Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attached or related or 

pertaining to and exercised by or available to the Transferor Company shall be 

deemed to have been exercised by the Transferor Company for and on behalf of 

and as agent for the Transferee Company. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties 

and commitments attached, related or pertaining to the Undertaking that have 

been undertaken or discharged by the Transferor Company shall be deemed to 

have been undertaken or discharged for and on behalf of and as agent for the 

Transferee Company. 

 
With effect from the first of the date of filing of this Scheme with the NCLT and up 

to and including the Effective Date: 

 

The Transferor Company shall preserve and carry on their business and activities 

with reasonable diligence and business prudence and shall not undertake any 

additional financial commitments of any nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts 

nor incur any other liabilities or expenditure, issue any additional guarantees, 

indemnities, letters of comfort or commitments either for itself or on behalf of its 

group Company or any third party or sell, transfer, alienate, charge, mortgage or 



encumber or deal with the Undertaking or any part thereof save and except in each 

case in the following circumstances: 

 
If the same is in its ordinary course of business as carried on by it as on the date of 

filing this Scheme with NCLT; or 

 
 If the same is permitted by this Scheme; or 
 
 If consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company has been obtained. 

 
The Transferor Company shall not take, enter into, perform or undertake, as 

applicable (i) any material decision in relation to its business and operations other 

than decisions already taken prior to approval of the Scheme by the respective 

Board of Directors (ii) any agreement or transaction; and (iii) any new business, or 

discontinue any existing business or change the capacity of facilities (iv) such other 

matters as the Transferee Company may notify from time to time save and except 

in each case in the following circumstances: 
 

 If the same is in its ordinary course of business as carried on by it as on the date 

of filing this Scheme with NCLT; or 
 

If the same is permitted by this Scheme; or 
 

If consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company has been obtained. 
 

(x) TREATMENT OF TAXES: 

 

Any tax liabilities under the Income-tax Act, 1961, Wealth Tax Act, 1957,Customs 

Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 , any other state 

Sales Tax /Value Added Tax laws, service tax, luxury tax, stamp laws, Goods and 

Service Tax (GST) or other applicable laws/ regulations (hereinafter in this Clause 

referred to as “Tax Laws") dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies allocable or related 

to the business of the Transferor Company to the extent not provided for or 

covered by tax provision in the accounts made as on the date immediately 

preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to Transferee Company. 

All taxes (including income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, 

service tax, luxury tax, VAT, GST etc.) paid or payable by the Transferor Company 



in respect of the operations and/or the profits of the business on and from the 

Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferee Company and, insofar as it 

relates to the tax payment(including without limitation income tax, wealth tax, 

sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, service tax, luxury tax, VAT, GST etc.), 

whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by 

the Transferor Company in respect of the profits or activities or operation of the 

business on and from the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be the 

corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company, and shall, in all proceedings, 

be dealt with accordingly. 

 

Any refund under the Tax Laws due to Transferor Company consequent to the 

assessments made on Transferor Company and for which no credit is taken in the 

accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also 

belong to and be received by the Transferee Company. 

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits including under the 

income tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, service tax, luxury tax, VAT, GST 

etc., to which the Transferor Company are entitled to in terms of the applicable Tax 

Laws of the Union and State Governments, shall be available to and vest in the 

Transferee Company. 

 

(xi) STAFF WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES: 

All the permanent employees of the Transferor Company who are in its 

employment as on the Effective Date shall become the permanent employees of 

the Transferee Company with effect from the Effective Date without any break or 

interruption in service and on terms and conditions as to employment and 

remuneration not less favorable than those on which they are engaged or 

employed by the Transferor Company. It is clarified that the employees of the 

Transferor Company who become employees of the Transferee Company by virtue 

of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the employment policies and shall not be 

entitled to avail of any schemes and benefits that may be applicable and available 

to any of the employees of the Transferee Company(including the benefits of or 

under any employee stock option schemes applicable to or covering all or any of 



the employees of the Transferee Company), unless otherwise determined by the 

Board of Directors of the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company 

undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement/ settlement, if any, validly 

entered into by the Transferor Company with any union/employee of the 

Transferor Company (as may be recognized by the Transferor Company). After 

the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to vary the terms and 

conditions as to employment and remuneration of the employees of the Transferor 

Company on the same basis as it may do for the employees of the Transferee 

Company. 

 
The existing provident fund, gratuity fund and pension and/or superannuation 

fund or trusts or retirement funds or benefits created by the Transferor Company 

or any other special funds created or existing for the benefit of the concerned 

permanent employees of the Transferor Company (collectively referred to as the 

"Funds") and the investments made out of such Funds shall, at an appropriate 

stage, be transferred to the Transferee Company to be held for the benefit of the 

concerned employees. The Funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals and 

permission and at the discretion of the Transferee Company, either be continued 

as separate funds of the Transferee Company for the benefit of the employees of 

the Transferor Company or be transferred to and merged with other similar funds 

of the Transferee Company. In the event that the Transferee Company does not 

have its own fund with respect to any such Funds, the Transferee Company may, 

subject to necessary approvals and permissions, continue to maintain the existing 

Funds separately and contribute thereto, until such time as the Transferee 

Company creates its own funds at which time the Funds and the investments and 

contributions pertaining to the employees of the Transferor Company shall be 

transferred to such funds of the Transferee Company. 

 

(xii) SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS: 

Subject to the terms of this Scheme, the transfer and vesting of the Undertaking of 

the Transferor Company under of the Scheme shall not affect any transactions or 

proceedings already concluded by the Transferor Company on or before the 



Appointed Date or concluded after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to 

the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds 

and things made, done and executed by the Transferor Company as acts, deeds 

and things made, done and executed by or on behalf of the Transferee Company. 

 

 
(xiii) ISSUE OF SHARES BY THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY: 

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and without any further application, act or 

deed, the Transferee Company shall, in consideration of the amalgamation of the 

Transferor Company with the Transferee Company 69,05,734 (Sixty Nine Lacs Five 

Thousand Seven hundred and Thirty Four) equity shares of Transferor Company 

held by Transferee Company, will be cancelled without any act, deeds or 

instrument and the Transferee Company will issue and allot, to every equity 

shareholder of the Transferor Company, holding fully paid-up equity shares in the 

Transferor Company and whose names appear in the register of members of the 

Transferor Company on the Record Date to be announced by the Board of the 

Transferee Company., held by such shareholder in the Share Capital of the 

Transferor Company (“Share Exchange Ratio”).  

 
In respect of the equity shares in the Transferor Company already held in 

dematerialized form, the New Equity Shares to be issued by the Transferee 

Company in lieu thereof shall also be issued in dematerialized form with the New 

Equity Shares being credited to the existing depository accounts of the members 

of the Transferor Company entitled thereto. Members of the Transferor Company 

desirous of receiving the New Equity Shares in the Transferee Company in 

dematerialized form should have their shareholding in the Transferor Company 

dematerialized on or before the Record Date.  

 
Pursuant to the Scheme, the shares of the Transferor Company held by its equity 

shareholders (both in physical and dematerialized form), shall, without any 

further application, act, instrument or deed, be deemed to have been automatically 

cancelled. The said equity shares of Transferor Company held in physical form 



shall be deemed to have been automatically cancelled without any requirement to 

surrender the certificates for shares held by the shareholders of the Transferor 

Company.  

 
No fractional share shall be issued by the Transferee Company in respect of the 

fractional entitlements, if any, to which the equity shareholders of the Transferor 

Company may be entitled on issue and allotment of New Equity Shares in the 

Transferee Company as above. The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company 

shall consolidate all such fractional entitlements and thereupon, issue and allot 

New Equity Shares in lieu thereof to the Trustee nominated by the Transferee 

Company for the purpose who shall hold the New Equity Shares in trust for and 

on behalf of the members entitled to such fractional entitlements with the express 

understanding that such Trustee shall sell the same at such time or times and at 

such price or prices to such person or persons, as it deems fit. The said Trustee 

shall distribute such net sale proceeds to the shareholders of the Transferor 

Company in the same proportion, as their respective fractional entitlements bear 

to the consolidated fractional entitlements. The Trustee shall be appointed by the 

Board of Directors of the Transferee Company. 

 
The New Equity Shares in the Transferee Company to be issued to the 

shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be subject to the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association of the Transferee Company and the New Equity Shares so 

issued shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares of the 

Transferee Company.  

 

The New Equity Shares of the Transferee Company issued in terms of the Scheme 

shall, subject to applicable regulations, be listed and/or admitted to trading on the 

relevant stock exchange(s) where the existing Equity Shares of the Transferee 

Company are listed and/or admitted to trading.  

 

Consequent to and as part of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the 

Transferee Company herein, the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferor Company 

shall stand merged into and combined with the Authorised Share Capital of the 



Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme, Since the present combined with 

Authorised Capital stands 7,50,00,000/- which is less than the post-merger issued 

capital of Rs. 10,31,12,340/- Hence the company decided to increase the combined 

post-merger Authorised Capital 7,50,00,000/- to 11,00,00,000/- accordingly clarified 

that the approval of the members of the Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be 

deemed to be their consent / approval also to the alteration of the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association of the Transferee Company as maybe required under the Act. 

Clause ‘V’ of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company shall stand 

substituted by virtue of the Scheme to read as follows: 

 

Clause ‘V’ of the Memorandum of Association 
 

 

The authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.11,00,00,000/- (Rupees eleven 

crores Only) divided into 1,10,00,000 (one Crores Ten Lacs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 

(Rupees Ten) each  
 

The equity shares of the Transferee Company allotted pursuant to the scheme 

shall remain frozen in the depositories system till listing / trading permission is 

given by the designated stock exchanges. Till the listing of the New Equity Shares 

of the Transferee Company, there will be no change in the pre-arrangement 

capital structure and shareholding pattern or controls in the Transferee Company, 

which may affect status of the approval of the stock exchanges to this scheme. 

 

Approval of the Scheme by the shareholders of Transferee Company shall be 

deemed to be due compliance of the provisions of section 42, 62 if any and other 

relevant or applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 

thereunder for the issue and allotment of the Equity shares by Transferee 

Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company as provided hereinabove. 

(xiv) NO ALLOTMENT OF SHARES TO THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY: 

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, all equity shares which the Transferee 

Company holds in the Transferor Company (either directly or through nominees) 

shall stand cancelled without any issue or allotment of New Equity Shares or 

payment whatsoever by the Transferee Company in lieu of such Equity Shares of 

the Transferor Company.  
 



(xv) ACCOUNTING TREATMENT: 

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed 

Date, for the purpose of accounting for and dealing with the value of the assets 

and liabilities in the books of the Transferee Company, all assets and liabilities shall 

be recorded at Fair Value and adjust differences in Goodwill/Capital 

Reserve/Gain from bargain purchase price. 

 

In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company 

and the Transferee Company, the impact of the same till the Appointed Date will 

be quantified and adjusted in accordance with 'Indian Accounting Standard Ind 

AS-8Áccounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, in the 

books of the Transferee Company to ensure that the financial statements of the 

Transferee Company reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent 

accounting policy. 

 
The difference between the value of respective investments carried in the books of 

the Transferee Company and the “Fair Value” of the assets of the respective 

Transferor Company, shall be debited/credited to Goodwill/ Other 

Comprehensive Income respectively as the case may be, in the books of the 

Transferee Company, and dealt with in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standard Ind AS-103 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
Subject to provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall abide by Indian 

Accounting Standard Ind AS-103issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. 

 
The amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company in terms 

of this Scheme shall take place with effect from the Appointed Date and shall be in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 
All inter-corporate deposits, loans and advances, outstanding balances or other 

obligations between Transferee Company and Transferor Company shall be 

cancelled and there shall be no obligation/outstanding in that behalf. 



 
 

Notwithstanding the above, the Transferee Company, in consultation with their 

statutory auditors, are authorized to account for this Scheme and effect thereof in 

any manner whatsoever as may be deemed fit in accordance with the applicable 

accounting standards. 

 
(xvi) POWER TO GIVE EFFECT TO THIS PART: 

The Transferee Company shall enter into and/ or issue and/ or execute deeds, 

writings or confirmations or enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations 

or novation’s, to which the Transferor Company will, if necessary, also be party in 

order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme, if so required. Further, 

the Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorised to execute any such 

deeds, writings or confirmations on behalf of the Transferor Company and to 

implement or carry out all formalities required on the part of the Transferor 

Company to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme. 

 

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the Transferee Company and/or the 

Transferor Company shall, with reasonable dispatch apply for transition of all 

licenses and statutory registrations of the Transferee Company including but not 

limited to product registrations (including applications and authorizations for 

product registrations), manufacturing licenses, product permissions, certificates, 

market authorizations, filings, (including experience and prequalification 

submissions), industrial licences, municipal permissions, approvals, consent, 

permits, incentives and subsidies. The period between the Effective Date and the 

last date on which the transfer of all such aforementioned licenses and statutory 

registrations have occurred is hereinafter referred to as “Transitory Period”. 

 

(xvii) DISSOLUTION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY: 

On the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferor Company shall stand 

dissolved without winding-up, and the Board of Directors and any committees 



thereof of the Transferor Company shall without any further act, instrument or 

deed be and stand dissolved. 
 

(xviii) VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ETC. 

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme the resolutions, if any, of the Transferor 

Company, which are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall continue to 

be valid and subsisting and be considered as resolutions of the Transferee 

Company and if any such resolutions have any monetary limits approved under 

the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory provisions, then the 

said limits shall be added to the limits, if any, under like resolutions passed by the 

Transferee Company and shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the 

Transferee Company. 
 

(xix) MODIFICATION OF SCHEME: 

Subject to approval of NCLT, the Transferor Company and the Transferee 

Company by their respective Board of Directors or any director/executives or any 

committee authorised in that behalf (herein after referred to as the "Delegate") may 

assent to, or make, from time to time, any modification(s) or addition(s) to this 

Scheme which NCLT or any authorities under law may deem fit to approve of or 

may impose and which the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company may in their discretion accept, or such modification(s) or 

addition(s) as the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee 

Company or as the case may be, their respective Delegate may deem fit, or required 

for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may arise in carrying 

out this Scheme. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company by their 

respective Boards of Directors or Delegates are authorised to do and execute all 

acts, deeds, matters and things necessary for bringing this Scheme into effect, or 

review the position relating to the satisfaction of the conditions of this Scheme and 

if necessary, waive any of such conditions (to the extent permissible under law) for 

bringing this Scheme into effect, and/or give such consents as may be required in 

terms of this Scheme. In the event that any conditions are imposed by NCLT or 



any Governmental Authorities, which the Board of Directors of the Transferor 

Company or the Transferee Company find unacceptable for any reason, then the 

Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be at liberty to withdraw 

the Scheme. 

For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification(s) thereof or 

addition(s) thereto, the Delegates (acting jointly) of the Transferor Company and 

Transferee Company may give and are authorised to determine and give all such 

directions as are necessary for settling or removing any question of doubt or 

difficulty that may arise under this Scheme or in regard to the meaning or 

interpretation of any provision of this Scheme or implementation thereof or in any 

matter whatsoever connected therewith (including any question or difficulty 

arising in connection with any deceased or insolvent shareholders or depositors, if 

any of the Transferor Company) or to review the position relating to the 

satisfaction of various conditions of this Scheme and if necessary, to waive any 

such conditions (to the extent permissible in law) and such determination or 

directions or waiver, as the case may be, shall be binding on all parties, in the same 

manner as if the same were specifically incorporated in this Scheme. For the 

avoidance of doubt it is clarified that where this Scheme requires the approval of 

the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company to 

be obtained for any matter, the same may be given through their Delegates. 
 

(xx) SEVERABILITY: 

If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, 

the same shall not, subject to the decision of the Board of Directors of the Transferor 

Company and the Transferee Company, affect the validity or implementation of 

the other parts and/or provisions of this Scheme. 
 

(xxi) BSE OBSERVATIONS:  

The Application we have submitted our proposal to the BSE listing Department 

on 4th Sept, 2018, and time to time BSE has asked clarifications which are 

addressed by us completely and no queries are pending with BSE subsequently 



BSE issued No Objection Certificate vide Letter.no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21, 

dated January 17th,2019 as annexed in Exhibit-L 

(xxii) SEBI OBSERVATIONS: 

Our proposal has being forwarded to SEBI by BSE on 22nd Nov,2018 and we 
have recently received a query from the SEBI on 20th Dec,2018. In connection 
with the some of the Directors whose names are appearing in the list of 
SBIL/SEBI ATR and the company has clarified the same the note is referred in.  

 

(xxiii) FILING OF APPLICATIONS: 

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall use their best efforts 

to make and file all applications and petitions under Sections 230 to 232 and other 

applicable provisions of the Act, before the respective NCLT for sanction of this 

Scheme under the provisions of law, and shall apply for such approvals as may be 

required under law. 
 

(xxiv) APPROVALS: 

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to 

apply to any Governmental Authority, if required, under any law for such consents 

and approvals which the Transferee Company may require to own the Undertaking 

and to carry on the business of the Transferor Company. 

 

(xxv) SCHEME CONDITIONAL UPON SANCTIONS, ETC: 

This Scheme is conditional upon and subject to: 
 

a. The Scheme being agreed to by the requisite majority of the respective members 

and/or creditors of the Transferor Company and of the Transferee Company as 

required under the Act and the requisite orders of the NCLT being obtained; and 

 
b. The certified copies of the orders of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme being filed 

with the Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad. 

 

 



 

(xxvi) COSTS, CHARGES, EXPENSES AND STAMP DUTY: 

All costs, charges and expenses (including any taxes and duties) incurred or 

payable by the Transferor Company and Transferee Company in relation to or in 

connection with this Scheme and incidental to the completion of the amalgamation 

of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company in pursuance of this 

Scheme, including stamp duty on the orders of NCLT, if any and to the extent 

applicable and payable, shall be borne and paid by the Transferee Company. 

The Board of Directors of Transferor Company (EBNL) and PPL/Transferee Company 

at their respective Board Meetings passed resolution and unanimously approved the 

said Scheme of Amalgamation. The true copies of the resolutions of the Board of 

Directors of both the Companies are annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit-G &H 

 A copy of the certificate issued by the statutory auditors of the Transferee Company 

to the effect that the accounting treatment specified in the Scheme is in conformity 

with the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 

2013, is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit-I 

13. COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION - ORDER DETAILS  

a. Holding of Meeting of Equity Shareholders 

The Petitioner states that the Petitioner Company had filed a Company Scheme 

Application No.CA(CAA)No.81/230/HDB/2019, wherein this Hon’ble Bench vide 

Order dated 20th ,March 2019 directed that a meeting of the Equity shareholders of 

the Petitioner Company be convened and held at 4-4-211/212/3,Inderbagh, Sultan 

Bazar, Hyderabad on Saturday, the, 11th May, 2019, at 10:.30 a.m. for the purpose of 

considering and, if thought fit, to approve, with or without modification(s), the 

Scheme of Amalgamation between Emergent Bio Naturals Limited, (the Transferor 

Company) and Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited, (the Transferee Company)  and 

their respective Shareholders. 

The said Order also contains several directions as regards publication of Public 

Notices in the newspapers and also dispatch of individual notices to shareholders.  



b.   Dispensation of Meeting of unsecured Creditors 

The Petitioner states that the Petitioner Company had filed Affidavit for dispensation 

of meeting of unsecured creditors through Application 

No.CA(CAA)No.81/230/HDB/2019, wherein this Hon’ble Bench vide Order dated 

20th March, 2019 as excepting the request for dispensation of the meeting of unsecured 

Creditors of the Petitioner/ Transferee Company.  

c. Directions passed with respect to issuance of notices to Regulatory Authority 
 

The Petitioner states that the Petitioner Company had filed a Company Scheme 

Application No.CA(CAA)No.81/230/HDB/2019, wherein this Hon’ble Bench vide 

Order dated 20th March, 2019 directed that the Petitioner Company shall issue 

individual notices pursuant to Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 as per Rule 

8 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 to 

notice to all concerned regulatory authorities i.e. Regional Director, Registrar of 

Companies, concerned Income Tax Authority the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India, Official Liquidator and BSE Limited  

A copy of the said Order dated 20th March, 2019 is annexed hereto and marked as 

Exhibit-H 
 

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCES OF COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION(CSA) 

ORDER, CHARIMAN’S REPORT & RESULT OF MEETING OF MEETING OF 

THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 

Compliances of CSA Order 

The Petitioner / Transferee Company states that in pursuance of the aforesaid order 

dated 20th March, 2019, the Petitioner / Transferee Company published notice 

convening the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Petitioner Company in 

Business Standard (English Daily) dated 06th, April 2019 and Nava Telangana (Telugu 

Daily) dated 06th April, 2019 respectively. 

Furthermore, the Petitioner / Transferee Company state that pursuance of the 

aforesaid order dated 20th March, 2019, the Petitioner / Transferee Company 

dispatched individual notices to 3138 Equity Shareholders by Courier and 1493 notices 

to Equity Shareholders through emails on 08th April, 2019. The Petitioner /Transferee 



Company crave leave to refer to and rely upon an affidavit dated, 01th May, 2019 of 

Ms. Kopal Sharraf chairperson appointed for the meeting proving publication of 

public notices and dispatch of individual notices. 

14. Details of convening of meeting of Equity shareholder & Chairman’s Report 

1. The Petitioner / Transferee Company states that pursuance to the directions 

contained in the aforesaid order dated 20th March, 2019 passed by this Hon’ble 

Bench, meeting of the Equity Shareholders was held on Saturday,11th May, 2019 

at 10:30 a.m. at 4-4-211/212/3, 1st Floor, Inderbagh, Sultan Bazar, Hyderabad-

500095. The chairman person Ms Kopal Sharraf appointed for the said meeting, 

in pursuance of the aforesaid direction of this Hon’ble Bench. The Chairperson 

of the meeting Ms.Kopal Sharraf has submitted his report dated 17th of May,2019  

together with the affidavit verifying the report dated 17th of May,2019, filed 

before this Hon’ble Bench.  A copy of the said report of Ms.Koapl Sharraf the 

Chariperson of the meeting dated 17thMay, 2019  is annexed hereto and marked 

as Exhibit -K 

2. As is clear from the said report and the aforesaid affidavit that, the meeting as 

directed by this Hon’ble Bench of the Equity Shareholders was duly convened 

and held after sufficient public and/or private communication to the said 

parties.  
 

 Result of Meeting 

(ii) The Petitioner / Transferee Company further say and submit that from the 

aforesaid report it is clear that: - 

(a) A total of 72 (seventy-two) Equity Shareholders were present at the   meeting;  

 

(b) A total of 72 (seventy-two) Equity Shareholders cast their votes through ballot at 

the meeting out of which 66 (sixty-six) Equity Shareholders casted in favour of the 

resolution, 1 (One) Equity Shareholder against the Resolution and 5 (Five) Equity 

Shareholders are invalid votes. 

(c) A total of 15 (fifteen) Equity Shareholders cast their votes through e-voting in 

favour of the resolution. 



Voted in favour of the resolution being adopted and carried into effect: 

 

Mode of 

voting 

Number 

of 

members 

voted 

% of total 

number of 

members 

voted 

Number of 

votes cast by 

members 

% of total 

number of 

valid votes 

cast 

 Ballot 66  99.84% 64,721 40.78 

 Remote e-

voting 

15  100% 93,967 59.22 

Total 81  1,58,688 100 

 

Voted against the resolution being adopted and carried into effect:  

Mode of 

voting 

Number of 

members 

voted 

% of total 

number of 

members 

voted 

Number of 

votes cast 

by 

members 

% of total 

number of 

valid votes 

cast 

 Ballot  1 0.16% 100 0.16% 

 Remote e-

voting 

 0  0 0 0 

 Total  1 0.16 100 0.16 

 

Note: There were a total of 5 invalid votes.  

The ballots and the other relevant records have been handed over to the 2nd 

Applicant/ Transferee Company for safekeeping.  

(iii) The Equity Shareholders who attended the meeting and voted and the Equity 

shareholders who voted through e-voting and ballot passed the resolution for the 

proposal of Scheme of Amalgamation with requisite majority without any 

modification pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the companies Act, 

2013.The Resolution passed by the Equity Shareholders is as under: 



RESOLVED  THAT   pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other 

applicable provisions, of the companies Act,2013  and subject to the approval of the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench (NCLT) and subject to other 

approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities as may be 

necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications, as ,may be prescribed 

or imposed by NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such 

consents , approvals and permissions, which may be approved by the equity 

shareholders, the proposed, scheme of  Amalgamation between Pharmaids 

Pharmaceuticals Limited and the Emergent Bio Naturals Limited and their 

respective shareholders (“Scheme”) placed before this meeting and initialed by the 

Chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification, be and is hereby 

approved. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board be and is hereby authorized to do all 

such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be considered to give effect to this 

resolution and effectively implement the Amalgamations embodied in the 

Scheme of Amalgamation and to accept such modifications imposed by the 

NCLT sanctioning the Scheme of Amalgamation or by any authorities under law, 

or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that 

may arise in giving effect to the Scheme of Amalgamation, as the Board may deem 

fit and proper.” 
 

(ii) The Petitioner states that in compliance with the Order dated 20th March, 2019 

as passed, the Petitioner Company has also given individual notices pursuant 

to Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 as per Rule 8 of the Companies 

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 to notice to 

all concerned regulatory authorities i.e. Regional Director, Registrar of 

Companies, concerned Income Tax Authority, the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India, Official Liquidator and BSE Limited. Further the necessary 

public notices as directed in the said order was published. The Petitioner 

craves leave to refer and rely upon copy of the Affidavit filed by the 

Chairperson Appointed by the NCLT, dated 17th May, 2019 filed in Company 

Scheme Application No. CA(CAA)No.81/230/HDB/2019 in respect of 

Service and Publication when produced 

(iii) The Petitioner is approaching this Hon’ble Bench by way of this Petition which 

is being filed within 1 (One) week from the date of filing of Chairman’s Report 

for an order sanctioning the Scheme. 



(iv) The Petitioner states that there is no change or modification in the Scheme of 

Amalgamation since the passing of the Order dated 20th March, 2019. 

(v) Since the Petitioner / Transferee Company has its registered office at Hyderabad 

in the State of Telangana, the necessary Petition under Sections 230 to 232 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 has been made to the Hon’ble National Company Law 

Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench, Hyderabad, and this Hon’ble Bench has jurisdiction 

to entertain and dispose off the present Petition. The Petitioner submits that the 

Transferor Company has its respective registered office within the jurisdiction of 

this Hon’ble Bench and the Transferor Company are also filing similar Petitions 

for necessary direction of this Hon’ble Bench. 

The shares of the Transferor Company are not listed on any of the Stock 

Exchanges being closely held Company. However, the shares of the Transferee 

Company are listed on BSE Limited. As per the provisions of SEBI Circular No. 

CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10th March, 2017 the Transferee company has 

filed draft Scheme with BSE Limited pursuant to Regulation 37 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and obtained No Objection 

letters from BSE Limited, vide their letter.no.CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 Dated 

17th January, 2019 respectively are enclosed as an Exhibits-L 

(vi) The Assets of the Transferor Company and Petitioner / Transferee Company are 

sufficient to meet all their liabilities and the said scheme will not adversely affect 

the rights of any of the creditors of the Transferor and Transferee Companies in 

any manner whatsoever.  Further there is no compromise or sacrifice called from 

any of creditors of the Petitioner Company. 

(vii) The Petitioner/Transferee Company further submits that none of the Directors 

of the Transferor and Transferee Companies have any material interest in the 

said Scheme of Amalgamation except to the extent of their Shareholding in the 

Company. 



(viii) Neither Transferor nor Transferee Companies are registered under the 

Monopolies & Restrictive Trade Practices Act and no investigation is pending 

against either of these Companies under Sections 210 and 213 and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(ix) No winding up petition is filed or pending against the Transferor Company or 

the Transferee Company. 

(x) This Petition is being made bona fide and in the interest of justice. 

(xi) The Petitioner submits that no one will be prejudiced if an order is made and/or 

directions are given as prayed for. 

(xii) The Petitioner submits that the Chairman’s Report dated 16th May, 2019 is filed 

on 17th May, 2019. The Present Petition is filed within 1 (One) week from the date 

of filing of Chairman’s Report i.e. within time prescribed under the Companies 

(compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, hence the 

present petition is not barred by laws of limitation. The Petitioner states that the 

Petitioner will rely upon documents referred and annexed to the present 

Petition. 

(xiii) The Notice of hearing of the Petition will be advertised in the newspaper 

 English Daily and Telugu Daily by the Petitioner Company as per  requisite 

 format and  in terms of the Order of this Hon’ble Bench. 

   (xiv) The publication of notice in the Government Gazette to be dispensed 

 with. 

  (xv)The Petitioner Company submits that the sanctioning the scheme of                   

Amalgamation will be for the benefit of the Petitioner Company and it will not 

prejudicially affect the rights and interests of the Shareholders and Creditors of the 

Petitioner Company. 

(xvi) The Petitioner Company states that the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation 
 does not any way violates, override or circumscribe any provisions of the 
 Companies Act, 2013 and rules, regulations, guidelines made under the said   
Act. 

(xvii) Notice of this Petition is not required to be served on any person. 



(xviii) The Petition is declared by Mr. Ghisulal Jain Director of the Petitioner/ 
 Transferee Company herein who is familiar with the facts and is able to depose 
 the same has  signed and verified the present Petition.  

15. The Petitioner Company therefore prays: 

a) That the said Arrangement as embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation  
between Emergent Bio Naturals Limited, (the Transferor Company) with 
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited, the Transferee Company (being 
Exhibit“D” be sanctioned  under Sections 230 to section 232 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 by this Hon’ble Bench with or without modification and declare the 
same to be binding on the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company 
and also their respective members/shareholders and Creditors and also all 
other Agencies, Departments and Authorities of the Central, State and any 
other local authorities. 
 

b) That liberty be reserved to the Petitioner/Transferee Company and all other 
persons interested in this Petition to apply to this Hon’ble Bench herein as and 
when occasion may arise for any direction that may be necessary. 

c) For such further or other orders as may be necessary in circumstances as the 

NCLT shall deem fit. 

                                                                       for Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Ltd 

                                                                                                        Ghisulal Jain 

       Managing Director  

                                                                            (Petitioner/Transferee Company) 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of EMERGENT 
BIO NATURALS LIMITED(“the Company”),which comprises the Balance Sheet as 
at 31 March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 
(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit.  

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical  

Exhibit-B 

Audited Financial Statement Of The Transferor Company 
As On March 31st,2018



Requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act 2013, in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and its Profit and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies ( Auditor’s Report ) Order, 2016 (“ the Order”)
issued by the central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st

March2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in’ Annexure B’; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on
31st March, 2018 on its financial position in its financial statements.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the
year ended 31st March 2018.

S. Ashok Kumar
Place: Hyderabad Chartered Accountant
Date: 15.06.2018 M.No: 223942



Annexure – A to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors Report to the Members of 
EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LIMITED 

On the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018, we report that: 

(i) In respect of its fixed assets:
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets on the
basis of available information.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management at regular intervals; as informed to us no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(ii) In respect of its inventories;

a) The physical verification of Inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and other parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of CARO
are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans but made an investment, to the
parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered
underf Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there
under to the extent notified.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not covered under these clause, therefore provisions of
the order made by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.



(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the records of the Company examined by us, the Company is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities in India.

b) There were  no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, , service tax, sales-tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2018 for a period of more
than 6 months for the date they become payable.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
records of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income tax,
which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company does not have any default in repayment of loans or
borrowings from any financial institution, bank, government or debenture
holders at the balance sheet date.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans.
Accordingly the provisions of this clause are not applicable to the
Company.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) The Company has paid /provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandate by the provisions of
section 197 read with schedule V to the Act.

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable
to the company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
Act.The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial statements as required under Accounting Standard 18, related



party disclosures specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.Accordingly, provision of clause
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
Entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

S. Ashok Kumar
Place: Hyderabad Chartered Accountant
Date: 15.06.2018 M.No: 223942



Annexure B to the Independent Auditors Report 

Report on the Internal financial controls under clause (i) of the sub- section 3 of the 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act’) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LIMITED (‘the company’) as of 31st March 2018 in 
conjunction with our audit of financial statements of the company for the year ended 
on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Companies Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to companies 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the standards on auditing deed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and both issued by the ICAI. These standards and Guidance require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and performed the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment including 
the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion and the company’s internal financial control 
system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes this policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detailed, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statement s 
in accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorization of management 
and directors of the company; and(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention and timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be deducted. 
Also, projections of evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial system over financial reporting and such inherent finanacial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March,2018,based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company  
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Hyderabad S.Ashok Kumar

Date: 15.06.18 Chartered Accountant
M.No: 223942



 Particulars  Note No 
 As At 

31-03-2018
(Audited)

 As At 
31-03-2017
(Audited)

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Shareholder's funds

(a) Share Capital 2   2,46,63,340    2,46,63,340   

(b) Reserves and surplus 3   5,06,85,660    5,05,32,062   

2. Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Long Term Borrowings 4   -  -  

(b) Deffered Tax liability (net) 5   2,88,209  3,12,730  

(c) Other Non-current liabilities 6   -  -  

3. Current Liabilities

(a) Trade payables 7   -  -  

(b) Short term borrowings 8   -  -  

(b) Other current liabilities 9   1,74,200  1,24,500  

(c) Shorth term provisions 10    30,385  13,558  

TOTAL 7,58,41,794    7,56,46,190   

II. ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets

(a) Fixed assets

(i) Tangible assets 11    10,74,399   15,16,774   

(b) capital WIP 12    45,00,000   45,00,000   

(c) Long term loans and advances 13    6,66,04,960    5,47,79,960   

2. Current Assets

(a) Inventories 14    -  -  

(b) Trade receivables 15    36,39,445   30,01,466   

(c) Cash and Bank balances 16    22,990     1,18,47,990   

(d) Short term loans and advances 17    -  -  

TOTAL 7,58,41,794    7,56,46,190   

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD

( S Ashok Kumar) 

Chartered Accountant 

M No :- 223942

Dt : 15th June 2018

Place :- Hyderabad 

EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018

 Director      Director

 Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts Accompanying Notes 1 - 33 are an integral part of financial 
Statements in terms of our report even date 



 Particulars  
 Note 

No 

 As At 
31-03-2018
(Audited)

 As At 
31-03-2017
(Audited)

Income :- 

Revenue from operations 18        7,65,250 6,00,151 

Other Income 19        - -

Total Revenue :      7,65,250 6,00,151 

Expenses: -

Cost of Materails Consumed 20        - -

 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and 
Stock-in-Trade 21        - -

Other Operating Expenses 22        - -

Employee Benefits Expenses 23        - -

Finance Costs 24        5,163 1,769 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 11        4,42,375 4,42,375 

Other Expenses 25        1,58,250 84,854 

Total Expenses : 6,05,788 5,28,998 

Profit Before Tax 1,59,462 71,153 

Tax Expense: 

Current Tax 30,385 13,558 

Deferred Tax -24,521 -9,493 

Profit/ (Loss) for the period 1,53,598 67,088 

 Accompanying Notes 1 - 33 are an integral part of 
financial Statements in terms of our report of even 
date 

For and on behalf of the Board of

EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD

( S Ashok Kumar) 

Chartered Accountant 

Dt : 15th June'2018

Place :- Hyderabad 

EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD
Trading and Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Director Director

M No :- 223942



NOTE 2: SHARE CAPITAL

PARTICULARS 

a) Authorized Share Capital

35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 

Total :

b) Issued Capital, Subscibed & Fully paid up

24,66,334 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 

c) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Number Value Number Value 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the 

- Shares issued during the year -    -    -    -    

- Shares bought back during the year -    -    -    -    

Shares outstanding at the end of the -    -    -    -    

d) Terms & Rights attached to equity share holders

e) Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares. 

 No. of shares held 
 % of share 

holding 
 No. of shares held 

 % of share 
holding 

f) There is no Shares alloted for consideration other than cash

As at 31-03-2018

3,50,00,000   

3,50,00,000   

2,46,63,340   

2,46,63,340   

Equity Shares 
As at 31-03-2017As at 31-03-2018

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholer is ligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in cas of interim
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of thecompany after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by them.

Name of the Equity Share Holder 
As at 31-03-2017

3,50,00,000   

3,50,00,000   

2,46,63,340   

2,46,63,340   

EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD
Notes Forming Part of Provisional - Balance Sheet 

As at 
31-03-17

As at 
31-03-18

(Amount in Rs) (Amount in Rs)



NOTE 2: SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars 

Authorised
35,00,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,50,00,000 3,50,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
24,66,334 shares of Rs 10/- each 2,46,63,340 2,46,63,340 

Total 2,46,63,340 2,46,63,340 

Note 3: RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

Particulars 

Share premium 4,93,26,680 4,93,26,680 

Surplus/(Deficit) in the Satement of Profit and Loss - - 

Opening Balance 12,05,382 11,38,295 

(+) Net Profit / (Net Loss) for the current year 1,53,598 67,087 

     (+/-) Depreciation adjustment for the prior years - - 

     (Adjustment As per the new schedule rates of Depreciation  of 
Companies Act'2013)  

- - 

Total 5,06,85,660 5,05,32,062 

Note 4: LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars 

Unsecured - -

- From Directors - -

- From Banks / Financial Institutions - -

Secured Loans - -

Loans from Financial Institutions - -

Total - -

Note 5: DEFFERED TAX LIABILITY (Net)

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) - -

On depreciation on fixed assets - -

Deferred Tax Asset - -

On employee benefit expenses - -

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) as on 31-3-2017 -24,521 -9,493

Deferred Tax Liability at the beginning of the year 3,12,730 3,22,223 

Total 2,88,209 3,12,730 

Note 6: OTHER NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars 

Creditors for capital goods - -

Mobilization Advance from Client - -

Total - -

EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD
Notes Forming Part of  Balance Sheet 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 



EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD
Notes Forming Part of  Balance Sheet 

Note 7: TRADE PAYABLES 

Particulars 

Trade Payables 

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises* - -

Dues to other tham Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -

For Goods - -

For Services - -

Total - -

Note 8: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars 

Loans Repayable on Demand - -

Secured - -

Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from banks - -

Total - -

Note 9: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars 

Other Payables 

Auditor's Remuneration Payable 27,000 17,000 

Salaries Payable - -

Rent Payable - -

Labour wages payable - -

Other Dues payable 1,47,200 1,07,500 

Total 1,74,200 1,24,500 

Note 10: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 

Particulars 

provisions 30,385 13,558 

Total 30,385 13,558 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 
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Note 13: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good -

Others

- Balance with government authorities - -

- Retention money - -

- Advance Payment of Taxes - -

- other Loans 6,66,04,960 5,47,79,960 

Total 6,66,04,960 5,47,79,960 

Note 14: INVENTORIES 

Particulars 

Raw Materials - -

Work-in progress - -

Total - -

Note 15: TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Particulars 

Considered good - -

 Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
are due for the payment 

- -

Others 36,39,445 30,01,466 

Total 36,39,445 30,01,466 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

Note 12: INVESTMENTS 

Particulars 

Chit Funds - -

NSC - -

Mutual Funds - -

Other investments - -

Total - -

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)



EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD
Notes Forming Part of  Balance Sheet 

Note 16: CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Particulars 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(a) Balances with banks

In Current Accounts - 1,18,47,990 

Cash on hand 22,990 -

(b) Other bank balances - -

in Fixed deposits (more than 3 months maturity) - -

Total 22,990 1,18,47,990 

Note 17: SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Particulars 

Unsecured, Considered good - -

 Materail Advances  - -

 Retention money  - -

 Advance to labour & others - -

 Interest Receivable - -

Other Advances - -

Total - -

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)



EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD
Notes Forming Part of  Balance Sheet 

Note 18: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations :

 Income from operations 7,65,250 6,00,151 

Total 7,65,250 6,00,151 

Note 19: OTHER INCOME 

Particulars 

Other Non - Operating Income - -

 Interest Income  - -

Total - -

Note 20: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars 

Cost of Materails and Stores - -

Opening Stock - -

Add: Purchases or receipts - -

Less: Closing stock - -

Total - - 

Note 21: INCREASE OR DECREASE IN WIP

Particulars 

Opening balance of Work in Progress - -

Closing balance of Work in Progress - -

Increase or decrease in WIP - -

Note 22: OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Labour Charges - -

Piece work contracts - -

Machinery Maintenance - -

Transportation - -

Other Work Expenses - -

Department deductions - -

Total - -

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

Schdules for Trading and P & L Account 



EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD
Notes Forming Part of  Balance Sheet 

Note 23: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Salaries - -

Mess Expenses - -

Staff welfare expenses - -

Total - -

Note 24: FINANCIAL COSTS

Particulars 

Bank Charges 5,163 1,769 

Bank Guarantee Charges - -

Interest :- 

Interest to banks - -

Interest to others - -

Processing charges - -

Total 5,163 1,769 

Note 25: OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars 

Advertisement Exp - -

Audit fees 10,000 10,000 

Conveynce - -

Consultancy charges - -

Electricity Charges - -

Office Rent / Camp rents - -

Salaries 1,44,000 41,000 

Postage, Courier & Telegrams - -

Printing and Stationary - -

Travelling Expenses - -

Repairs & Maintanance - -

Telephone & Internet Expenses - -

Other Exp - 5,740 

Misc 4,250 28,114 

Total 1,58,250 84,854 

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2018 
(Audited)

 As at      31.03.2017
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at     31.03.2017 
(Audited) 

 As at      31.03.2018
(Audited) 



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

26 Contingent Liabilities

2017-18 2016-17

-                                           -   

-                                           -   

-                                           -   

-                                           -   

27

28 Segment Reporting

29

30

31

32

For and on behalf of the Board
EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LTD

( S Ashok Kumar) 
Hyderabad,15 June,2018 Chartered Accountant 

Place :- Hyderabad 

Previous year’s figures have been reclassified/ regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to current year's
classifications.  

No Provision has been made for employee retirment benefits as per pending acturail valuation and company has
deposited towards employee provident fund amounts from time to time 

The Company’s operations predominantly consist of construction/project activities. Hence, there are no reportable
segments under Accounting Standard 17. During the year under report, substantial part of the Company’s business has
been carried out in India. The conditions prevailing in India being uniform, no separate geographical disclosures are
considered necessary.  The Company’s does not have any operations outside India.

Supplementary Statutory Information : 

a) Earnings in Foreign Currency : Nil

b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency : Nil

c) Value of imports calculated on CIF basis : Nil

d ) As the company is a service industry, the requirement under para 4C of part II of schedule VI to the companies act, 
1956 relating to disclosure of particulars in respect of licensed and utilized capacities and quantitative details of the 
materials consumed and of turnover is not applicable.

Related Party Disclosure : 
There were no transactions with related parties in the year 2017-18

Some of the balances under sundry debtors, loans and advances, Sundry Creditors and other payables are subject to
confirmations from parties and the same in a continous and going process

d) Claims against the company acknowleged as debts

Particulars

a) Letter of Credit

b) Bank Guarantees ( Rs in Crs) 

c) Corporate gurantee given to customers



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS 

A. Corporate Information

a. EMERGENT BIO NATURELS LTD is a Company incorporated in 2006 under
the Companies Act, 1956 manufacturing a wide range of health care products
including pharmaceutical formulations facilities and commenced its operations
in the year 2006.

b. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of BIO NATURAL Products.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles to comply in all material respects with the notified accounting 
standards (‘AS’) under Companies Accounting Standard Rules, 2006, (as amended), 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 (‘the Act’). The financial 
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual 
basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company and are 
consistent with those used in the previous year. 
a).  Change in Accounting Policy 
Presentation and disclosure of financial statements 
During the year ended 31st March 2013, the revised schedule VI notified under
Companies Act 2013 has become applicable to the company, for preparation and 
presentation of its financial statements. The adoption of revised schedule VI does not 
impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial 
statements. However, it has significant impact on presentation and disclosures made 
in the financial statements. The company has also reclassified the previous year 
figures in accordance with the requirements applicable in the current year, for 
comparison. 

b).    Method of Accounting 
The company follows mercantile system of accounting and recognizes income & 
expenditure on accrual basis. 

c).     Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles in India requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and 
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements 
are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of 
the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and 
assumptions used in preparing the accompanying financial statements, any revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods. 



d).   Fixed Assets, Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment of Assets 

Tangible Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets 

Tangible Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets are stated at their original cost of 
acquisition, net of accumulated depreciation and CENVAT credit, and include taxes, 
freight and other incidental expenses related to their acquisition / construction 
/installation. Pre-operative expenses relatable to a specific project are capitalized till 
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are 
completed. Expenses capitalized also include applicable borrowing costs.  

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are recognized in the balance sheet at cost, net of any accumulated 
amortization/ impairment. Preliminary expenses are amortized over a period of 5 
years. Demerger expenses are amortized over a period of 10 years. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on all depreciable assets by written down value method at 
the rates prescribed in schedule XVI to the companies Act, 2013 as amended from time 
to time. Depreciation has been calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of 
acquisition / installation of asset. Depreciation as per Income Tax has been separately 
calculated for ascertaining the tax liability. 

Impairment of assets 

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable 
value. An impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss A/c in the year in which 
an asset is identified as impaired. 

e). Investments 

Investments are classified into current and long term investments. Current 
investments are carried at lower of cost or fair market value. Any diminution in their 
value is recognized in the profit and loss A/c. long term investments, including 
investment in subsidiaries, are carried at cost. Diminution of temporary nature in the 
value of such long term investments is not provided for except when such diminution 
is determined to be of a permanent nature. 

Investment Property 

An investment in land or buildings that are not intended to be occupied substantially 
for use by, or in the operations of, the company is classified as investment property. 
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization 
and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable 



cost of bringing the investment property to its working condition for its intended use. 
Depreciation and building component of the investment property is calculated on a 
written down value method(‘WDV’), and is equal to the rates prescribed in schedule 
XIV of the Act. On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying 
amount and the net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit 
and loss. 

f). Inventories 
Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less. Cost 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such 
inventories to their location. Finished goods at the factory are valued at cost in all 
applicable cases. Obsolete, non moving and defective inventories are indentified at the 
time of physical verification of inventories and adequate provision, whichever 
necessary, is made for such inventories.  

g). Revenue Recognition 

Income is recognized when the goods are dispatched in accordance with terms of sale. 
Sale is inclusive of excise duty, as applicable. 

In respect of income from services, income is recognized as and when the rendering of 
services is complete. Revenue from time period services is recognized on the basis of 
time incurred in providing such services. 

h). Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition construction of a 
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. Other borrowing costs are 
treated as a period cost and are expensed in the year of occurrence. 

i). Income and Deferred Tax 

The provision made for income tax in the accounts comprises both the current and 
deferred tax. Current tax is provided for on the taxable income for the year. The 
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year arising on account of timing differences 
(net) are recognized in the profit and loss A/c and the cumulative affect thereof is 
reflected in the balance sheet. 

j). Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity share holders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the 
purpose of calculating diluted Earnings per Share, net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
share. 



NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 

1. Particulars of employees in accordance with sub-section (2A) of section 217 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (particulars of employees) Rule 1975. NIL

2. Company having equity shares24,66,334 of Rs 10 each fully paid up and authorized
capital of Rs 3,50,00,000.

3. Auditor’s Remuneration:        Amount in Rs. 
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 

Auditor’s Remuneration as an auditor 10,000 10,000 

4. There are no dues to SSI units outstanding for more than 30 days.

5. The company has been provided the provision for deferred income tax asset /
liability- Nil- for current year and previous year towards Differ Tax asset of Rs 9493/-
as per accounting standard 22 issued by ICAI.

6. The company has obtained confirmation of balances outstanding in balance sheet.

7. The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

8. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date      for and on behalf of the Board 

EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LIMITED 

S. Ashok Kumar
Chartered Accountant
M.No: 223942

Place: Hyderabad   
Date: 15.06.2018 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR 



misstatement.

Audited Financial Statement  Of The Transferee Company 

As On March 31st,2018 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of PHARMAIDS 
PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement 
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

 Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows 
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements 
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 

Exhibit-B



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on

the auditor ’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control

relevant to the Company’s preparation of the  Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the  Ind AS
financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required

by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 March, 2018, its Loss including other comprehensive income,

its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 27.2 to the financial statements which describes about

Non-confirmation /reconciliation of trade receivables and trade payables.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the
Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of

Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of accounts.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on

31st March 2018 taken on record by the Board of  Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March 2018 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2017 , in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Rakesh S Jain & Associates
 Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 010129S

Sd/-
(B.Ramesh Kumar)

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date:  5-5-2018 M.No: 200304



The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the 
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report 
that:

(i) a) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, the company
has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, all the assets
has been physically verified by the Management during the year.

(ii) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year
by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.
The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans to any of  the parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

 (v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning
of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost
records under Section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company  is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employee’s state insurance,  income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of
customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
dues of income tax sales tax, duty of excise, service tax and value added tax
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

(viii) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information
and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any loans or
borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture
holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable.



(ix) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information
and explanation given to us, the Company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term
loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, in our opinion the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For Rakesh S Jain & Associates
 Chartered Accountants

FRN: 010129S

Sd/-
(B.Ramesh Kumar)

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date:   5-5-2018 M.No: 200304



Report on the Internal Financial Controls under the Clause (i) of sub section 
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED  (“the Company”) as of 31 March 
2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detention of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Auditors Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of the internal financial controls over the financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
systems over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance it
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of the Management and directors of
the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Rakesh S Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 010129S

Sd/-
(B.Ramesh Kumar)

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date:   5-5-2018 M.No: 200304



ASSETS Note no.  As at 
31 March 2018 

 As at 
31 March 2017 

1 Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 1 22,512 - 
Financial assets
- Non-Current Assets - - 

- Long-term loans and advances 2 4,880,256 3,795,514 
- Others

Deferred tax assets (Net) 3 1,816 - 
Other non-current assets 4 530,000 - 

2 Current assets 
Inventories 5 - 2,445,711 
Financial assets
- Trade and other receivables 6 5,155,587 7,876,906 
- Cash and cash equivalents 7 2,363,716 6,087,061 
- Short term loans and advances 8 - - 

Other current assets 9 - - 

TOTAL ASSETS 12,953,888 20,205,192 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity

Share capital     10 33,630,850 33,630,850 
Other equity 11
- Equity component of other financial instrument
- Retained earnings (23,210,753) (19,353,363) 

Share application money pending allotment 

1 Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities
- Long term borrowings 12 - - 

Long term provisions 13 - - 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 - - 
Other non-current liabilities 15 252,375 926,413 

2 Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities
- Short term borrowings 16 - - 
- Trade and other payables 17 1,847,985 4,477,852 

Other current liabilities 18 433,430 523,440 
Short-term provisions 19 - - 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,953,888 20,205,192 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 27
As per our report of even date attached
For Rakesh S Jain & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 010129S

(B.Ramesh Kumar)   Dr. Ghisulal Jain    [DIN No.0404983]
Partner      Chairman & Managing Director    
Membership Number: 200304

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 05/05/2018

PHARMAIDS PHARAMCEUTICALS LIMITED
Balance sheet as at March 2018

 (Amount In Rupees)

For. Pharmaids Pharmceuticals Limited

     Director & CEO [DIN No.718351] 
      Seema Jain



 (Amount In Rupees)

Particulars Note no. For the year ended 
31 March 2018

For the year ended 
31 March 2017

Revenue from operations 20 4,491,436 12,025,258 

Other income 21 200,717 100,696 

Total revenue 4,692,153 12,125,954 

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 346,861 6,448,720 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 2,418,509 - 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in-trade 22 2,178,825 295,344 
Employee benefit expenses 23 629,832 1,663,207 
Finance cost 24 14,043 401,319 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 10,888 637,086 
Other expenses 25 2,778,939 7,052,605 

Total expenses 8,377,898 16,498,280 

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (3,685,745) (4,372,326) 
Exceptional items - 5,197,058 
Profit/ (loss) before tax (3,685,745) 824,732 
Tax expenses 26 171,645 (272,161) 
Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing operations (3,857,390) 1,096,893 
Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations - - 
Tax expense of discontinued operations - - 
Profit/ (loss) from discounting operations (after tax) - - 
Profit/ (loss) for the period (3,857,390) 1,096,893 
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period (3,857,390) 1,096,893 
 (Profit/ loss + other comprehensive income)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations)
a) Basic (1.13) 0.32 
b) Diluted (1.13) 0.32 
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations)
a) Basic - - 
b) Diluted - - 
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing operations)
a) Basic (1.13) 0.32 
b) Diluted (1.13) 0.32 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 27

As per our report of even date attached
For Rakesh S Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 010129S

(B.Ramesh Kumar)     Dr. Ghisulal Jain    [DIN No.404983]
Partner        Chairman & Managing Director    
Membership Number: 200304

Place: Hyderabad Seema Jain
Date: 05/05/2018     Director & CEO [DIN No.718351]

For. Pharmaids Pharmceuticals Limited

PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2018



PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE  YEAR  ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2018

For the Year 
ended on 

31.03.2018

For the Year ended 
on 31.03.2017

A Cash Flow from Operating activities :

Net Profit after Interest & Depreciation but
before Tax (36,85,745)  8,24,732  
Depreciation 10,888  6,37,086  
Interest paid -  3,85,372  
Interest received (2,00,717)  (1,00,571)  
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -  -  
Profit on Sale of Assets / Investments -  -  
Bad Debts Written Off -  -  

Operating Profit before working capital changes (38,75,574)  17,46,619  

Adjustments for :
Trade and Other Payables (26,29,867)  28,255  
Inventories 24,45,711  4,34,076  
Trade receivables 27,21,319  28,65,586  
Loan and advances -  
Other Assets (5,30,000)  -  
other current liability (90,011)  (18,15,839)  

Cash generated from operations (19,58,421)  32,58,697  
Add: Income Tax paid (1,73,461)  -  
Miscellaneous Expenditure

Net Cash flow from Operating activities (before & 
after extraordinary items)  " A "

 (21,31,882)  32,58,697 

B Net Cash from Investing activities :
( Purchase ) / Sale of fixed assets (33,400)  37,30,442  
Capital Work in Progress -  
Increase in Creditors for Capital Goods -  
( Purchase ) / Sale of investments -  
Interest received 2,00,717  1,00,571  
investment in vardhaman bank(dividend income) -  1,250  
Sale of Fixed Assets -  -  
Sale of Investments -  -  
Long Term Loans and Advances (10,84,742)  (5,75,091)  

Net cash flow from Investing activities " B " (9,17,425)  32,57,172  

C Cash Flow from Financing activities
Issue of Share Capital -  
Bank borrowings & Unsecured Loan (6,74,038)  (18,04,424)  
Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax Paid -  
Interest paid -  (3,85,372)  

Net Cash flow from Financing activities " C " (6,74,038)  (21,89,796)  

D Net ( Decrease ) / Increase in Cash and
Cash Equivalents ( A + B + C ) (37,23,345)  43,26,073  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning 60,87,061  17,60,989  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end 23,63,716  60,87,061  

As per our report of even date attached
For. Pharmaids Pharmceuticals Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 010129S

(B.Ramesh Kumar)
Partner      Chairman & Managing Director    
Membership Number: 200304

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 05/05/2018

For Rakesh S Jain & Associates

     Seema Jain
 Director & CEO [DIN No.718351] 

 Dr. Ghisulal Jain    [DIN No.404983]



PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

Amount in INR lakhs

 Total equity 
 Capital 

redemption 
reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Capital 
Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April 2016    336.31  - (204.50) - 131.81 

Total comprehensive income for the 
year ended 31 March 2017    -    -       10.97 - 10.97 
Other comprehensive income (net of 
tax) (refer note 23) 

   -    -     -     -   
- 
-    

   336.31  - (193.53) - 142.77
Transactions recorded directly in 
equity
Contributions and distributions:
Nil    -    -     -     -     -   

  -   
Balance as at 31 March 2017    336.31  - (193.53) - 142.77

 Capital 
redemption 

reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Capital 
Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April 2017    336.31    (193.53) - 142.77 

Total comprehensive income for the 
year ended 31 March 2018

   -    -     (38.57) (38.57) 

Other comprehensive income (net of 
tax) (refer note 23) -    

Balance as at 31 March 2018    336.31  - (232.11) - 104.20
Transactions recorded directly in 
equity
Contributions and distributions:
Nil    -    -     -     -     -   
Balance as at 31 March 2018    336.31  - (232.11) - 104.20

For Rakesh S Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants For. Pharmaids Pharmceuticals Limited
Firm Registration Number: 010129S

(B.Ramesh Kumar)
Partner        Chairman & Managing Director    
Membership Number: 200304

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 05/05/2018

Seema Jain
     Director & CEO [DIN No.718351] 

    Dr. Ghisulal Jain    [DIN No.404983]

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Particulars

 Share Capital 

Reserves and Surplus

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Particulars

Share Capital

Reserves and Surplus Total equity



1 PLANT & MACHINERY - 33,400           - 33,400             45.07% - 10,888              - 10,888 22,512         - 

- -             - 
- - - 

TOTAL - 33,400           - -             - 33,400             - 10,888              - 10,888 22,512         - 

Previous Year 21,184,579              - - -             21,184,579            - 16,817,051            637,086            5,197,058 8,927,500             -              4,367,527              

PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Net Block as on 
31.03.2017As on 01.04.2017

Additions 
during the 

year

Capitalised 
during the 

year

Sale / Deletions 
during the year

As on 
31.03.2018

Dep. As on 
01.04.2017

Dep. For the 
year    2017-

2018

Adjustment 
Depreciation

 NOTE NO. 1 :  PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Sl. No. Particulars Total 
Depreciation as on 

31.03.2018

Net Block as 
on 

31.03.2018

Gross Block

Rate of 
Depreciation

Depreciation/Amortization 
Additions 
through 

Business acquit 
ions



As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Long - Term Loans and Advances:
a) Security Deposit
            Secured - -
            Unsecured 1,202,218 1,181,097 
( Security deposit consist of Sales Tax Deposit , Electricty deposit , Rent Deposit , Tender deposit 
and deposit with suppliers )

b)other Long Term Loans and advances
(Advance recoverable in cash or kind)

Secured -  - 
Unsecured 3,678,038 2,614,417 

Total Long Term Loans & Advances 4,880,256 3,795,514 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Opening Deferred tax Asset - 
Add: 
Deferred Tax Asset for the year ( Due to SLM and WDV Difference ) 1,816 
Deferred Tax Asset for the year ( Due to Others )

Gross Deferred tax Asset 1,816 - 
Opening Deferred tax Liability
 Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences and doubtful debt - 

Gross Deferred tax Liability - - 
Deferred Tax Asset/ ( Liability ) - Net 1,816 - 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I 1) Other non- current Asset
Product Development advances 530,000 -   

Total Non Current Assets 530,000 - 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Inventories :
a) Raw materials - 266,886 

Sub Total - 266,886 
b) Work - in - progress - - 

Sub Total - - 

c) Finished goods - 2,178,825 
- 

Sub Total - 2,178,825 

Total Inventories - 2,445,711 

PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

NOTE NUMBERS TO BALANCE SHEET

 NOTE NO.5 :  INVENTORIES

NOTE NO. 4. : OTHER  NON- CURRENT ASSETS

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 2 : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

S. No. Particulars

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 3 : DEFERRED TAX ASSET ( NET )

S. No. Particulars



PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Trade Receivables
Secured, Considered Good - - 
Unsecured, Considered Good
Less than Six months 1,369,945 4,075,805 
More than Six months 3,785,642 7,034,773 
Doubtful - - 

5,155,587 11,110,578 
Other Receivables:

Secured, Considered Good - 
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful - - 

- - 
 Total Trade Receivable ( Gross) 5,155,587 11,110,578 

Less : Provision for bad & doubtful debts - 3,233,672 
Total Trade Receivables(net) 5,155,587 7,876,906 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I  Cash and cash equivalents :
a) Balances with banks :

1) On Current Accounts 459,359 613,300 
2) On  Deposit  Accounts 1,097,402 4,657,086 

b) Cash on hand 806,956 816,675 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,363,717 6,087,061 

NOTE NO. 8 : SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Short - Term Loans and Advances:
a) Other loans And advances 
            Unsecured - - 
( Loans and advances consist of mobilisation advance to contactors ,advance to supplier  and Travel 
advance to employees )

Total Short Term Loans & Advances - - 

NOTE NO.9 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Prepaid Expenses
Interest Accrued on Deposits

- - 

S. No. Particulars

S. No. Particulars

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 7 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

NOTE NO. 6 : TRADE AND OTHER  RECEIVABLES

S. No.
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NOTE NO. 10 : SHARE CAPITAL 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

a Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised 40,000,000 40,000,000 
40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 34,055,000 34,055,000 
34,05,500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.
Less: Calls in Arrear 424,150 424,150 

Total Equity Share Capital 33,630,850 33,630,850 

b  A Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning  and at the end of the 
reporting period:  Number of Shares  Number of Shares 

Equity Shares of Re.1 0 Each, Fully paid up :
At the Beginning 3,405,500 3,405,500 
Issued during the year -                                           -   
At the end 3,405,500 3,405,500 

c Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% shares of the company:(Refer Note below)
 -  - 

Note:

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Other Equity
a) Capital Subsidy

As at the commencement of the year 993,750 993,750 
     Add: Additions during the year -                                         -   
     Less: Utilised during the year -   

993,750 993,750 
b) Capital Reserve

As at the commencement of the year - - 
     Add: Additions during the year - 
     Less: Utilised during the year - - 

- - 
c) Surplus :

i) Opening Balance (20,347,113) (21,444,006)
Add: Total comprehensive income during the year (3,857,390) 1,096,893 
Less: Bonus shares / ( Forfieture of Bonus shares) -                                         -   

(24,204,503) (20,347,113) 
Total Reserves and Surplus (23,210,753) (19,353,363) 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Long Term borrowings 
a) Term loans:

From banks:
         Secured - ( Refer Note No 29a )
    From Financial Institutions :
         Secured - ( Refer Note No 29b )
         Unsecured - ( Refer Note No 29c )
b) Loans and advances from related parties

Un Secured:
           Unsecured - ( Refer Note No.29d )

Total Long Term Borrowings - - 

NOTE NO. 12 : LONG TERM BORROWINGS

S.No. Particulars

S.NO. Particulars

NOTE NO. 11 : OTHER EQUITY

% of Share Holding

S. No. Particulars

No Shareholders is holding more than 5% in share of the company as on 31st, March 2017 and as on 31st, March 2018
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As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I a) Provisions for employee benefits

Total Long Term Provisions - - 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Opening Deferred tax Liability - 
Add: 
Deferred Tax Liability for the year ( Due to SLM and WDV Difference )
Deferred Tax Liability for the year ( Due to Others )

Gross Deferred tax Liability - - 
Opening Deferred tax Asset
 Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences and doubtful debt - 

Gross Deferred tax Asset - - 
Deferred Tax Liability/ ( Asset ) - Net - - 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

a) Trade Payables & Others
- Advance from Customers -                                         -   

b) Others 
Sales Tax Deferral** (refer note) 252,375 926,413 

Total other long term liabilities 252,375 926,413 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I Short term borrowings  
a) Loans repayable on demand:

From banks
Secured  - ( Refer Note No. 31)

       From other parties
Secured

Unsecured
b) Loans and advances from other parties

Unsecured  -( Refer Note No. 31 )
c) Loans and advances from Related parties

Unsecured

Total Short Term Borrowings - - 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I a) Trade Payables 1,847,985 4,477,852 

Total Trade Payables 1,847,985 4,477,852 

NOTE NO. 14 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES ( NET )

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 15 : OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITES

NOTE NO. 13 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 16 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS.

S. No. Particulars

**Represents 14 years Interest free sales tax deferment loan received from Government of Andhra Pradesh. Repayment commences from 
2014-15 based on deferment availed in the respective years.

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 17: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

S. No. Particulars



PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I a) Current maturities of Long Term Debts
b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
c) Income received in advance.
d) Unpaid dividend.
e) Other Payables 155,605 258,663 
f) Others 

Sales Tax Deferral** (refer note) 277825 264,777 
Total Other Current Liabilities 433,430 523,440 

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees

I a) Provisions for employee benefits
b) Others

Total Short Term Provisions - - 

Particulars

NOTE NO. 19 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

S. No. Particulars

**Represents 14 years Interest free sales tax deferment loan received from Government of Andhra Pradesh. Repayment commences from 
2014-15 based on deferment availed in the respective years.

NOTE NO. 18 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITES

S. No.



Year Ended 
31.03.2018

Year Ended 
31.03.2017

Rupees Rupees
I Revenue from operations in respect of non-finance company

(a) Sale of Products 4,491,436     12,025,258        

Total Revenue from Operations 4,491,436     12,025,258        

Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 Year Ended 
31.03.2017 

Rupees Rupees
I (a)Interest income 200,717    100,571  

(b)Other non-operating income(net of expenses directly attributed to such income) 125   

Total Other Income 200,717    100,696  

Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 Year Ended 
31.03.2017 

Rupees Rupees

I  Finished Goods 
     Finished goods at the beginning of the year 2,178,825     2,384,319    
    Less : Finished goods at the end of the year  -     2,178,825    

Sub Total (A) 2,178,825     205,494  
Work-in-progress

   Stock at the beginning of the year -     89,850   
    Less : Stock at the end of the year -     -    

Sub Total ( B) -     89,850    

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories    (A+B) 2,178,825     295,344  

Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 Year Ended 
31.03.2017 

Rupees Rupees
I (a) Salaries & Wages 582,442    1,598,766    

(b) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 27,652      54,699    
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses 19,738      9,742      

Total Employee Benefit Expenses 629,832    1,663,207    

PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

NOTE NUMBERS TO STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
 NOTE NO. 20 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 21 : OTHER INCOME

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 22 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS & STOCK-IN-TRADE:

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 23 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 

S. No. Particulars
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Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 Year Ended 
31.03.2017 

Rupees Rupees
(a) Interest Expenses :

 - Interest on Term Loan -     385,372              
(b) Bank Charges 14,043      15,947 
(c) Applicable net gain/loss on foreign currency translations & transactions -     

Total Finance Cost 14,043      401,319  

Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 Year Ended 
31.03.2017 

Rupees Rupees

I Advertisement Expenses 83985 25497
Annual listing fees 300137 235656
Audit Fees 30000 31050
Bad Debts 0 3233672
Business Promotion 171455 945963
Carriage expenses 25774 319131
Commission 315452 2201
Computer Maintenance / hire charges 21829 20175
Consumables 57939 6989
Conveyance 71984 143495
Directors remuneration 150000 137500
Discount 3494 28600
Electricity Charges 42914 111197
Factory Maintenance 0 196130
General Expenses 336899 133333
Marketing Expenses 0 71960
Postage & Telegram 26064 58181
Printing & stationery 48888 45461
Product development 0 117717
Professional Charges 169202 156150
Professional tax 5000 7500
Rates and Taxes 19969 66413
Rent 305320 234694
Repairs & Maintainence - Vehicle 0 31182
Repairs & Maintainence -others 5131 40518
Sales Tax Arrears 0 7544
Secretarial Expenses 81447 209604
Telephone Charges 31345 60245
Travelling Expenses 460083 316220
Swach Bharat Cess 0 1171
Insurance Exp 0 18000
Interest on TDS 0 75
Packing Material 14629 39381

Total Other Expenses 2,778,939     7,052,605    

NOTE NO. 25 : OTHER EXPENSES

S. No. Particulars

NOTE NO. 24 : FINANCE COST 

S. No. Particulars
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Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 Year Ended 
31.03.2017 

Rupees Rupees
I Current tax

Deferred tax -1816 -272161
Adjustment for previous year tax
- Income Tax paid for earlier year 173,461    -    

Total Other Income 171,645   (272,161)     

NOTE NO. 26:  TAX EXPENSES

S. No. Particulars
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2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
Salary 150000 1,50,000 - -

Total 150000 1,50,000 - -

Name of the parties
Ø Dr. Ghisulal Jain
Ø Abhishek  jain

2017-18 2016-17
150,000  137,500  

Reimbursement of Expenses,etc 45,690  -

2017-18 2016-17
The computation of EPS is set out below:
Earning
Net Profit/Loss for the period (3,857,390)  1,096,893  
Shares
Number of Shares at the Beginning of the period 3,405,500  3,405,500  
Add: Shares issued during the period -  -  
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period 3,405,500  3,405,500  
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period 3,405,500  3,405,500  
Earning per share of par value Rs. 10/- Basic & Diluted (Rs) (1.13)  0.32  

For Rakesh S Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 010129S

(B.Ramesh Kumar)  Dr. Ghisulal Jain    [DIN No.404983]
Partner       Chairman & Managing Director    
Membership Number: 200304

Place: Hyderabad        Seema Jain
Date: 05/05/2018

NAME OF THE TRANSACTIONS RELATED TO THE 
PARTY 

TRANSACTIONS WITH 
KEY MANAGEMENT

PERSONNEL AND THEIR
RELATIVES

27.4 Related party disclosures ( as indentified by the management) as per Indian Accounting Standard – 24 are 
given below:

Note-27 Notes Forming Part of Accounts

27.1 Details of Managerial Remuneration:
Managing Director Executive Director

27.2 Balance of Trade Payables, Other Current Liabilities , Loans and Advances, and Trade Receivables are subject 
to confirmation / reconciliation.

27.3 The Company’s operation mainly consist of only one segment i.e. Drug formulations and therefore the figures 
relate to that segment only.

Managerial Remunaration

27.6 In Accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-36) on "Impairment of Assets" the management 
during the year carried out exercise of identifying the assets that may have been impaired in respect of each cash 
generating unit. On the basis of this review carried out by the management there was no impairment loss on the 
Fixed assets during the year ended 31st March 2018.

 For and on behalf of the Board

27.8 Foreign Currency Earnings/Outgoing-              NIL

 Director & CEO [DIN No.718351] 

27.7 Contingent Liability- NIL

27.5 EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)



PHARMAIDS PHARMCEUTICALS LTD

Notes to the IND AS financial Statements

1 Company background

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited (the Company) is a Listed Company
incorporated under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1956 having
its registered office at Sultan Bazar, Hyderabad. The company operates in
a single segment and the results pertain to a single segment. i.e., drug
formulation only.

The standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) financial statements
were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors
dated 5 May 2018.

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with  Ind AS
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the “Act”) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2017 were
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules
2006, notified under section 133 of the Act and other provisions of the Act.

As these are the Company’s first   financial statements prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101- First
Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also
the Company’s functional currency. All the amounts have been rounded- off
to the nearest Rupee.

2.3 Basis of preparation

The   financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.



3 Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.01 Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement Items of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.Cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.Any gain or loss on disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Transition to Ind ASOn transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to
continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at 1 April 2017, measured as per the previous GAAP, and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and
equipment.

iii. Subsequent expenditure : Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the
carrying values under Indian GAAP for all items of property, plant and
equipment.

iv. Depreciation : Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property,
plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives using the written down value method, and is generally recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the
current and comparative periods are as follows:

Assets estimate of useful life

Plant & Machinery 5

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year-end and adjusted, if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation
and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets.Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided



on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use
(disposed of).

v. Reclassification to investment property When the use of a property
changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is
reclassified as investment property at its carrying amount on the date of
reclassification.

3.02 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

3.02.1 Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

a) Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s
right to receive payment is established.

b) Interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset; or- the amortised
cost of financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired,
then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross carrying amount.

3.03 Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or
loss.

3.03.1 Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured
using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantially enacted by the
reporting date.Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if



there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it
is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

3.03.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
also  recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:- temporary difference arising on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at
the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in any case of a history of recent losses,
the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred
tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised,
are reviewed at each reporting  date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

3.04 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of past event, the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-fix rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent Liabilities : A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it
cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses it in the financial statements, unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.



3.05 Employee benefits :Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably.

3.06 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for
the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

3.07 Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials
and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of first-in first-out basis. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

3.08 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

3.09 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby  net profit/ (loss)
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The  cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

3.10 Impairment of assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units).
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF

EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LIMITED
AND

PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
(Under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013)

GENERAL
I. PURPOSE OF SCHEME

This Scheme of Amalgamation provides for the amalgamation of Emergent Bio Naturals Limited (CIN:
U01122TG2006PLC050994) (hereinafter referred to as “EBNL”), referred to as “Transferor Company”, with
PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED (CIN: L52520TG1989PLC009679) (hereinafter referred to as
“PPL” or “Transferee Company”) pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable. This Scheme also provides for various other matters
consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith.

II. RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME
The Transferee Company, is engaged in the business of trading of affordable medicine in Ayurveda and
Allopathy. The Transferor company is engaged in the business of trading of Nutraceuticals products and
Drug Intermediaries & Cosmetic Chemicals, APIs and other Extractions.

The integration, consolidation and amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company
would inter alia have the following benefits:

1. Greater integration, financial strength and flexibility for the Transferee Company, which will improve the
financial position of the Transferee Company on a standalone basis.

2. Greater efficiency in cash management of the Transferee Company, and unfettered access to cash
flow generated by the combined business which can be deployed more efficiently to fund growth
opportunities, to further improve shareholder’s value.

3. Greater financial flexibility to execute on other opportunities to accelerate the Transferee Company’s
long-term growth targets.

4. Improved organizational capability and leadership, arising from the pooling of human capital that has
the diverse skills, talent and vast experience to compete successfully in an increasingly regulated and
competitive industry.

5. Benefit of operational synergies to the combined entity in areas such as raw material sourcing, product
placement, marketing and sale promotions initiatives, freight optimization and logistics.

6. Greater leverage in operations planning and process optimization and enhanced flexibility in product
offerings.
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7. Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, rationalization, standardisation
and simplification of business processes, productivity improvements, improved procurement, usage of
common resource pool like human resource, administration, finance, accounts, legal, technology and
other related functions, leading to elimination of duplication and rationalization of administrative
expenses.

III. PARTS OF THE SCHEME
The Scheme is divided into following parts:

(i) Part A – dealing with definitions of the terms used in this Scheme of Amalgamation and setting out the
share capital of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

(ii) Part B – dealing with the transfer and vesting of the Undertaking of the Transferor Company to and in
the Transferee Company;

(iii) Part C – dealing with the accounting treatment for the amalgamation in the books of the Transferee
Company; and

(iv) Part D – dealing with the dissolution of the Transferor Company and the general terms and conditions
applicable to this Scheme of Amalgamation and other matters consequential and integrally connected
thereto.

PART A
DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

1. DEFINITIONS
In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the context, the following expressions shall have the following meaning:

1.1 “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent its provisions relevant for this scheme are
notified and ordinances, rules and regulations made thereunder and shall include any statutory
modifications, reenactment or amendment thereof for the time being in force; includes reference
to any provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 duly notified which replace/ amend/ modify the
said provisions.

1.2 “Appointed Date” For the purpose of this Scheme and for Income Tax Act, 1961, the “Appointed
Date” means the open of business hours on 1stApril 2018.

1.3 “Board of Directors” or “Board” means the board of directors of any of the Transferor Company
or the Transferee Company, as the case may be, and shall include a duly constituted committee
thereof.

1.4 “Business Claims” means the benefit of all rights and claims of the Transferor Company arising
out of or in connection with the Transferor Company business under any agreements, licences,
warranties, conditions, guarantees, indemnities or other rights subsisting at the Appointed Date
(whether express or implied) in favour of the Transferor Company.

1.5 “Business Information” means all information embodying know-how and other information relating
to the business (whether or not confidential and no matter in what form held) including, without
limitation, all designs, specifications, data, manuals and instructions and all lists of customers,
suppliers, agents and distributors, business plans and forecasts and all notices, correspondence,
orders and enquiries and other documents, in connection with its business.

1.6 “Business Records” means all records of Business Information and other data (wherever situated)
and all books, files, registers, documents, literature, correspondence and other records of the
Transferor Company owned or used or intended for use, in each case whether in writing or in
electronic or any other form.

1.7 “Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the certified or authenticated copies of the
order of the National Company Law Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme are filed with the Registrar
of Companies by the Transferor Company and by the Transferee Company. Any references in
this Scheme to the date of “coming into effect of this Scheme” or “effectiveness of this Scheme” or
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“Scheme taking effect” shall mean the Effective Date;

1.8 “Financial Statements” means the annual accounts (including balance sheet, statement of profit
and loss and cash flow statement) of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company,
including the accounts drawn up to the Appointed Date.

1.9 “Goodwill” means and includes the goodwill in connection with the businesses of the Transferor
Company, together with the exclusive right for the Transferee Company and its assignees to
represent themselves as carrying on the business in succession to the Transferor Company and
includes Business Claims, Business Information, Business Records, product registrations/
approvals, skilled employees, technical know-how and other Intangible Assets as defined in
clause 1.13.

1.10 “Government Authority” means Central Government, any applicable State or local Government,
legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission or any court,
tribunal, board, bureau or instrumentality thereof or arbitration or arbitral body having
jurisdiction.

1.11 “NCLT “means the National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench.

1.12 “Intangible Assets” means and includes all intellectual property and industrial property rights
and rights in confidential information of every kind and description throughout the world, in
each case whether registered or unregistered, and including any applications for registration of
any of the following, including without limitation (i) inventions (whether patentable or not),
patents, invention disclosures, and all related continuations, continuations-in-part, divisionals,
reissues, re-examinations, substitutions and extensions thereof; (ii) rights in computer programs
(whether in source code, object code, or other form), algorithms, databases, compilations and
data, technology supporting the foregoing, and all documentation, including user manuals
and training materials, related to any of the foregoing; (iii) copyrights and copyrightable subject
matter; (iv) trademarks, service marks, names, corporate names, trade names, domain names,
logos, slogans, trade dress, registered designs, design rights and other similar designations of
source or origin; (v) all know-how, confidential information, trade secrets, ideas, proprietary
processes, formulae, models and methodologies; (vi) rights of publicity, privacy, and rights to
personal information; (vii) moral rights and rights of attribution and integrity; (viii) any rights or
forms of protection of a similar nature or having equivalent or similar effect to any of the
foregoing which subsist anywhere in the world.

1.13 “Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “Scheme of Amalgamation” means this Scheme
of Amalgamation in its present form or with any modification(s) made under clause 17 of this
Scheme, as approved or directed by the NCLT, Hyderabad Bench.

1.14 “Undertaking” means the whole of the undertaking and entire business of the Transferor Company
as a going concern, including (without limitation):

I. All the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible, real or personal,
corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent) of the Transferor Company, including but not
limited to, plant and machinery, equipment, buildings and structures, offices, residential and other
premises, sundry debtors, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, appliances, accessories, depots,
deposits, all stocks, assets, investments of all kinds (including shares, scrips, stocks, bonds, debenture
stocks, units), and interests in its subsidiaries, cash balances or deposits with banks, loans, advances,
disbursements, contingent rights or benefits, book debts, receivables, actionable claims, earnest
moneys, advances or deposits paid by the Transferor Company, financial assets, leases (including
lease rights), hire purchase contracts and assets, lending contracts, rights and benefits under any
agreement, benefit of any security arrangements or under any guarantees, reversions, powers, municipal
permissions, tenancies in relation to the office and/or residential properties for the employees or other
persons, guest houses, godowns, warehouses, licenses, fixed and other assets, trade and service
names and marks, patents, copyrights, and other intellectual property rights of any nature whatsoever,
know how, good will, rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased
line connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds,
benefits of assets or properties or other interest held in trust, registrations, contracts, engagements,
arrangements of all kind, privileges and all other rights including, title, interests, other benefits (including
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tax benefits), easements, privileges, liberties, mortgages, hypothecations, pledges or other security
interests created in favour of the Transferor Company and advantages of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever situated in India or abroad, belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in
the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company or in connection
with or relating to the Transferor Company and all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or
in the ownership, power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the
benefit of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company, whether in India or abroad;

II. All liabilities including, without being limited to, secured and unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees
or foreign currency), sundry creditors, liabilities (including contingent liabilities), duties and obligations
of the Transferor Company, of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising,
raised or incurred or utilised;

III. All agreements, rights, contracts, entitlements, permits, licenses, approvals, authorizations,
concessions, consents, quota rights, engagements, arrangements, authorities, allotments, security
arrangements (to the extent provided herein), benefits of any guarantees, reversions, powers and all
other approvals of every kind, nature and description whatsoever relating to the business activities and
operations of the Transferor Company;

IV. All records, files, papers, computer programs, manuals, data, catalogues, sales material, lists of
customers and suppliers, other customer information and all other records and documents relating to
the business activities and operations of the Transferor Company;

V. All permanent employees engaged by the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date.

VI. All rights, entitlements, export/import incentives and benefits including advance licenses, bids, tenders
(at any stage as it may be), letters of intent, expressions of interest, development rights (whatever
vested or potential and whether under agreements or otherwise), subsidies, tenancies in relation to
office, benefit of any deposits privileges, all other rights, receivables, powers and facilities of every
kind, nature and description whatsoever, rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile
connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services, provisions and benefits of all
agreements, contracts and arrangements, including technological licensing agreements, and all other
interests inconnection with or relating thereto;

VII. All intellectual property rights created, developed or invented by employees concentrated on the research,
development or marketing of products (including process development or enhancement) in connection
with the Transferor Company;

VIII. All benefits and privileges under letters of permission and letters, of approvals, all tax credits, including
CENVAT and other Input credits, refunds; reimbursements, claims, exemptions, benefits under service
tax laws, value added tax, purchase tax, sales tax or any other duty or tax or cess or imports under
central or state law including sales tax deferrals, advance taxes, tax deducted at source, right to carry
forward and set-off unabsorbed losses, if any and depreciation, deductions and benefits under the
Income-tax Act, 1961;

1.15 “EBNL” or “Transferor Company” means Emergent Bio Naturals Limited, a public limited company
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, and having its registered office at 503, Amrutha
Estate, Himayathnagar, Hyderabad - 500029, Telangana.

1.16 “PPL” or “Transferee Company” means Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited, a Listed public
company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, and having its registered office at 4-4-
211/212/3, 1st Floor, Inderbagh, Sultan Bazar, Hyderabad-500095. The Transferee Company’s
equity shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited.

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or
meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
from time to time.
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2. SHARE CAPITAL
2.1 EBNL or Transferor Company

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of Transferor Company as per its latest
audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Authorised Capital Amount (Rs.)
35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 3,50,00,000

Total 3,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital Amount (Rs.)
24,66,334 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 2,46,63,340

Total 2,46,63,340
Subsequent to the above balance sheet date there is no change in the Capital Structure of Transferor
Company except bonus issue of 9,86,533 equity shares.

2.2 PPL or Transferee Company

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of Transferee Company as per its latest
audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Authorised Capital Amount (Rs.)
40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,00,00,000

Total 4,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital Amount (Rs.)
34,05,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 3,40,55,000

Less: Calls in Arrears 4,24,150
Total 3,36,30,850

Subsequent to the above balance sheet date there is no change in the capital structure of Transferee
Company. It is hereby clarified that the Transferee Company will be free to make further issue of Equity
Shares as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder and
other applicable laws, rules and regulations including SEBI regulations. However, the Transferee Company
shall be not be entitled to make bonus issue of Equity Shares by capitalisation of its free reserves & surplus
till the Effective Date.

The equity shares of Transferee Company are, at present, listed on the BSE Limited.

3. DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE
The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) approved or imposed or directed
by the NCLT shall take effect from the Effective Date and shall be operative from the Appointed Date.
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PART B
TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH THE

TRANSFEREE COMPANY
4. TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING
4.1 Subject to the provisions of this Scheme as specified hereinafter and with effect from the Appointed Date,

the entire business and Undertaking of the Transferor Company, including all the debts, liabilities, losses,
duties and obligations, including those arising on account of taxation laws and other allied laws of the
Transferor Company of every description and also including, without limitation, all the movable and immovable
properties and assets, tangible or intangible assets (whether or not recorded in the books of account of the
Transferor Company) of the Transferor Company comprising, amongst others, all freehold land, leasehold
land, building, plants, motor vehicles, receivables, actionable claims, furniture and fixtures, computers,
office equipment, electrical installations, generators, containers, telephones, telex, facsimile and other
communication facilities and business licenses, Factories Act licenses, manufacturing licenses, permits,
deposits, authorisations, approvals, insurance cover of every description, lease, tenancy rights, permissions,
incentives, if any, and all other rights, patents, know-how, trademark, service mark, trade secret, brands,
registrations, licenses including marketing authorisations and other intellectual property rights, proprietary
rights, title, interest, contracts, deeds, bonds, consents, approvals and rights and powers of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever, privileges, liberties, easements, advantages and benefits shall, under
the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and pursuant to the order of the NCLT sanctioning this
Scheme and without further act, instrument or deed, but subject to the charges affecting the same as on
the Effective Date, be transferred and/or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company,
so as to become the properties, assets, rights, business and Undertaking of the Transferee Company.

4.2 Without prejudice to the generality of clause 4.1 above, with respect to the assets of the Transferor Company,
including cash and bank balances, as are movable in nature or are otherwise capable of transfer by manual
delivery, by paying over or by endorsement and delivery or otherwise, the same shall be so transferred by
the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company, without requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance
for the same and shall become the property of the Transferee Company as an integral part of the assets of
the Transferee Company, with effect from the Appointed Date.

4.3 Without prejudice to the generality of clause 4.1 above, with effect from the Appointed Date, all debts,
liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date whether provided for
or not in the books of account of the Transferor Company and all other liabilities which may accrue or arise
after the Appointed Date but which relate to the period on or up to the day of the Appointed Date, shall be
the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company including any encumbrance on the
assets of the Transferor Company or on any income earned from those assets.

4.4 With effect from the Appointed Date, all inter-party transactions between the Transferor Company or any of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be considered as intra-party transactions for all
purposes.

4.5 Loans, advances and other obligations (including any guarantees, letters of credit, letters of comfort or any
other instrument or arrangement which may give rise to a contingent liability in whatever form), if any, due or
which may at any time in future become due between the Transferor Company or any of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall, ipso facto, stand discharged and come to an end and there
shall be no liability on any party and appropriate effect shall be given in the books of accounts and records
of the Transferee Company. It is hereby clarified that there will be no accrual of interest or other charges in
respect of any inter-company loans, advances and other obligations between the Transferor Company or
any of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, with effect from the Appointed Date.

4.6 All existing securities, mortgages, charges, liens or other encumbrances, if any, as on the Appointed Date
and created by any of the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date, over the properties and other
assets comprised in the Undertaking or any part thereof transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue of
this Scheme and in so far as such securities, mortgages, charges, liens or other encumbrances secure or
relate to liabilities of any of the Transferor Company, the same shall, after the Effective Date, continue to
relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they are related or attached prior to the
Effective Date and as are transferred to the Transferee Company, and such securities, mortgages, charges,
liens or encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the other assets of the Transferee Company,
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provided however that no encumbrances shall have been created by any of the Transferor Company over its
assets after the date of filing of the Scheme without the prior written consent of the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company, except for those done in the normal course of business.

4.7 The existing encumbrances over the properties and other assets of the Transferee Company or any part
thereof which relate to the liabilities and obligations of the Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date
shall continue to relate only to such assets and properties and shall not extend or attach to any of the
assets and properties of the Transferor Company transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company by
virtue of this Scheme.

4.8 It is expressly provided that, save as herein provided, no other term or condition of the liabilities transferred
to the Transferee Company is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such amendment
is required statutorily or by necessary implication.

4.9 With effect from the Appointed Date, all contracts, statutory licences, registrations, incentives, tax deferrals
and benefits, carry-forward of tax losses, tax credits, tax refunds, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights,
claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, permissions, approvals or consents to carry on the operations of
the Transferor Company, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or
availed of by any of the Transferor Company and all rights and benefits that have accrued or which may
accrue to any of the Transferor  Company, whether before or after the Appointed Date shall stand vested in
or transferred to the Transferee Company, pursuant to the Scheme, without any further act or deed and shall
remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions and shall be appropriately mutated
by the statutory authorities concerned in favour of the Transferee Company upon the vesting and transfer of
the Undertaking of the Transferor Company pursuant to this Scheme.

4.10 Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, including contracts for tenancies, licenses
and capacity allotments obtained from Government Authority, MOU’s with Government Authority, land lease
deeds, other deeds, bonds, agreements, any agreement with Government Authority, licences, permits,
registrations, approvals and other instruments, if any, of whatsoever nature to which any of the Transferor
Company are a party and subsisting or having effect on the Effective Date, shall be in full force and effect
against or in favour of the Transferee Company, as the case may be, and may be enforced by or against the
Transferee Company as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company
had been a party thereto, notwithstanding the terms contained in such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements,
licences, permits, registrations, approvals and other instruments.

4.11 The amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, pursuant to and in accordance
with this Scheme, shall take place with effect from the Appointed Date and shall be in accordance with
Section 2(1B) of the Incometax Act, 1961. If any terms or provisions of the Scheme is/ are inconsistent with
the provisions of section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the provisions of Section 2(1B) shall prevail
and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent necessary to comply with such provisions. Such
modifications will however not affect the other parts of the Scheme.

5. CONSIDERATION
5.1 Upon the Scheme coming into effect and without any further application, act or deed, the Transferee Company

shall, in consideration of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company allot, 
to every equity shareholder of the Transferor Company, holding fully paid-up equity shares in the Transferor 
Company and whose names appear in the register of members of the Transferor Company on the Record 
Date to be announced by the Board of the Transferor Company, 2 (Two) Equity Shares of the Transferee 
Company, credited as fully paid-up with rights attached thereto as hereinafter mentioned 
(hereinafter referred to as the “New Equity Shares”) for every 1 (One) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-
up, held by such shareholder in the capital of the Transferor Company (“Share Exchange Ratio”).

5.2 In respect of the equity shares in the Transferor Company already held in dematerialized form, the New
Equity Shares to be issued by the Transferee Company in lieu thereof shall also be issued in dematerialized
form with the New Equity Shares being credited to the existing depository accounts of the members of the
Transferor Company entitled thereto. Members of the Transferor Company desirous of receiving the New
Equity Shares in the Transferee Company in dematerialized form should have their shareholding in the
Transferor Company dematerialized on or before the Record Date.
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5.3 Pursuant to the Scheme, the shares of the Transferor Company held by its equity shareholders (both in
physical and dematerialized form), shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed, be deemed
to have been automatically cancelled. The said equity shares of Transferor Company held in physical form
shall be deemed to have been automatically cancelled without any requirement to surrender the certificates
for shares held by the shareholders of the Transferor Company.

5.4 No fractional share shall be issued by the Transferee Company in respect of the fractional entitlements, if
any, to which the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company may be entitled on issue and allotment of
New Equity Shares in the Transferee Company as above. The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company
shall consolidate all such fractional entitlements and thereupon, issue and allot New Equity Shares in lieu
thereof to the Trustee nominated by the Transferee Company for the purpose who shall hold the New Equity
Shares in trust for and on behalf of the members entitled to such fractional entitlements with the express
understanding that such Trustee shall sell the same at such time or times and at such price or prices to
such person or persons, as it deems fit. The said Trustee shall distribute such net sale proceeds to the
shareholders of the Transferor Company in the same proportion, as their respective fractional entitlements
bear to the consolidated fractional entitlements. The Trustee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors
of the Transferee Company.

5.5 The New Equity Shares in the Transferee Company to be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company shall be subject to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company and
the New Equity Shares so issued shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares of the
Transferee Company.

5.6 The New Equity Shares of the Transferee Company issued in terms of the Scheme shall, subject to applicable
regulations, be listed and/or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange(s) where the existing Equity
Shares of the Transferee Company are listed and/or admitted to trading.

6. INCREASE IN AUTHORISED CAPITAL OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY
6.1 Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the authorised share capital of the Transferee Company in terms of
 its Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association shall automatically enhanced without any 
further act, instrument or deed on the part of the Transferee Company, including with payment of 
stamp duty and fees payable to the Registrar of Companies, on a additional enchanced Authorised Capital 
by an amount of Rs. 3,50,00,000 (Rupees Three crore Fifty Lakhs  Only), and the provisions in the 
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company (relating to the authorised share 
capital) shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended, and the 
consent of the shareholders to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting this 
amendment, and no further resolution(s) under any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be 
required to be separately passed. For this purpose, the filing fees and stamp duty already paid by the 
Transferor Company on their authorised share capital shall be utilized and applied to the increased authorised 
equity share capital of the Transferee Company, and shall be deemed to have been so paid by the 
Transferee Company on such combined authorised share capital and accordingly, the Transferee Company 
shall be required to pay filing fees and stamp duty on the increased authorised share capital .

6.2  Consequent to and as part of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company herein
the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferor Company shall stand merged into the combined with Authorised 
Share Capital of the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme. Since the present combined Authorised Capital 
stands 7,50,00,000/- which is less than the post-merger issued capital of Rs. 10,31,12,340/-. Hence the company 
decided to increase the combined post-merger Authroised Capital from 7,50,00,000/- to 11,00,00,000/- accordingly.
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7. STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES
7.1 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all staff, workmen and employees of the Transferor Company in
service on the Effective Date shall be deemed to have become staff, workmen and employees of the
Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date or the date of joining whichever is later, without any
break or interruption in their service and on the basis of continuity of service, and the terms and conditions of
their employment with the Transferee company (i.e. cost-to- company basis, in monetary terms) shall not
beless than those applicable to them with reference to their employment with the Transferor Company on the
Effective Date.



7.2 It is expressly provided that, on the Scheme becoming effective, the provident fund, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund or any other special fund or trusts, if any, created or existing for the benefit of the staff,
workmen and employees of the Transferor Company shall become trusts/ funds of the Transferee Company
for all purposes whatsoever in relation to the administration or operation of such fund or funds or in relation
to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund or funds in accordance with the provisions thereof
as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds, if any, to the end and intent that all rights, duties,
powers and obligations of the Transferor Company in relation to such fund or funds shall become those of
the Transferee Company. It is clarified that, for the purpose of the said fund or funds, the services of the
staff, workmen and employees of the

7.3 Transferor Company will be treated as having been continuous with the Transferee Company from the date
of employment as reflected in the records of the Transferor Company.

8. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
8.1 If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against any of the Transferor Company are

pending, including those arising on account of taxation laws and other allied laws, the same shall not abate
or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of the arrangement by anything contained
in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and
enforced by or against the Transferee Company, in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or
might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company, as if this
Scheme had not been made.

8.2 On and from the Effective Date, Transferee Company may, if required, initiate or defend any legal proceedings
in relation to the rights, title, interest, obligations or liabilities of any nature whatsoever, whether under
contract or law or otherwise, of Transferor Company and to the same extent as would or might have been
initiated by or defended by Transferor Company.

9. POWER TO GIVE EFFECT TO THIS PART
The Transferee Company shall enter into and/ or issue and/ or execute deeds, writings or confirmations or
enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations, to which the Transferor Company will, if
necessary, also be party in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme, if so required.
Further, the Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorised to execute any such deeds, writings or
confirmations on behalf of the Transferor Company and to implement or carry out all formalities required on
the part of the Transferor Company to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme.

10. TAXATION MATTERS
10.1 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all taxes payable by the Transferor Company under the Income-tax

Act, 1961, Customs Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, State Sales Tax laws, Central Sales Tax Act,
1956 or other applicable laws/ regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies (hereinafter referred to as “Tax
Laws”) shall be to the account of the Transferee Company; similarly all credits for tax deduction at source
on income of the Transferor Company, or obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by
or to be made by the Transferor Company shall be made or deemed to have been made and duly complied
with by the Transferee Company if so made by the Transferor Company. Similarly any advance tax payment
required to be made for by the specified due dates in the Tax Laws shall also be deemed to have been
made by the Transferee Company if so made by the Transferor Company. Further, the Minimum Alternate
Tax paid by the Transferor Company under Section 115 JB and/ or other provisions (as applicable) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961, shall be deemed to have been paid on behalf of the Transferee Company, and the
Minimum Alternate Tax credit (if any) of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date or accruing after
the Appointed Date shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company and such credit would be available
for set-off against the tax liabilities of the Transferee Company. Any refunds under the Tax Laws due to the
Transferor Company consequent to the assessments made on the Transferor Company and for which no
credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong
to and be received by the Transferee Company.

10.2 All taxes of any nature, duties, cesses or any other like payments or deductions made by the Transferor
Company or any of its agents to any statutory authorities such as income tax, sales tax, and service tax, or
any tax deduction/ collection at source, tax credits under Tax Laws, relating to the period after the Appointed
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Date shall be deemed to have been on account of or paid by the Transferee Company, and the relevant
authorities shall be bound to transfer to the account of and give credit for the same to the Transferee
Company upon the Effective Date and upon relevant proof and documents being provided to the said
authorities.

10.3 All cheques and other negotiable instruments and payment orders received in the name of the Transferor
Company after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of the Transferee Company and credited
to the account of the Transferee Company. Similarly, the banker of the Transferee Company shall honour
cheques issued by the Transferor Company for payment on or after the Appointed Date and presented after
the Effective Date.

PART C

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT FOR THE AMALGAMATION
IN THE BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

11. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY
11.1 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, for the purpose

of

accounting for and dealing with the value of the assets and liabilities in the books of the Transferee 
Company, all assets and liabilities shall be recorded at Fair Value and adjust differences in Goodwill/
Capital Reserve/Gain from bargain purchase price.

11.2 In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company,
the impact of the same till the Appointed Date will be quantified and adjusted in accordance with ‘Indian
Accounting Standard Ind AS – 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, in the
books of the Transferee Company to ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company
reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent accounting policy.

11.3 The difference between the value of respective investments carried in the books of the Transferee Company
and the “Fair Value” of the assets of the respective Transferor Company, shall be debited/credited to
Goodwill/ Other Comprehensive Income respectively as the case may be, in the books of the Transferee
Company, and dealt with in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard Ind AS-103 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

11.4 Subject to provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall abide by Indian Accounting Standard
Ind AS-103 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

11.5 The amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company in terms of this Scheme shall take
place with effect from the Appointed Date and shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(1B)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

11.6 Notwithstanding the above, the Transferee Company, in consultation with their statutory auditors, are
authorized to account for this Scheme and effect thereof in any manner whatsoever as may be deemed fit
in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

11.7 With effect from the Appointed Date, all the assets and liabilities appearing in the books of accounts of
Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and vested in Transferee Company, as the case may be
pursuant to the Scheme and shall be recorded by Transferee Company at their respective fair values.

11.8 The reserves (whether capital or revenue or on revaluation) of the Transferor Company, other than the
statutory reserves should not be recorded in the Financial Statements of the Transferee Company. Where
the statutory reserve is transferred and recorded, corresponding debit should be given to a suitable account
head (e.g. Amalgamation Adjustment Account) which should be disclosed as a part of ‘miscellaneous
expenditure’ or other similar category in the balance sheet. When the identity of the statutory reserves is no
longer required to be maintained, both the reserves and the aforesaid account should be reversed.

11.9 In case of any differences in accounting policies between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
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Company, the accounting policies followed by the Transferee Company shall prevail to ensure that the
Financial Statements reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent accounting policies.

11.10The amount of any inter-company balances, amounts between the Transferor Company or between any of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, appearing in the Financial Statements of the respective
companies, shall stand cancelled without any further act or deed, upon the Scheme coming into effect, and
the amounts so cancelled shall not be recorded in the Financial Statements of the Transferee Company.

12. TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE APPOINTED DATE AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE
During the period from the Appointed Date to the Effective Date:

12.1 The Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on their respective business and
activities and shall be deemed to have held and stood possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of
their respective businesses and Undertaking for and on account of and in trust for the Transferee Company;

12.2 The Transferor Company shall carry on their respective business and activities in the ordinary course of
business with reasonable diligence and business prudence;

12.3 With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date, Transferor Company shall
not, without the written consent of Transferee Company, undertake any new business;

12.4 With effect from Appointed Date/ date of approval of scheme and up to and including the Effective Date,
Transferor Company shall not sell, transfer or alienate, charge, mortgage or encumber or otherwise deal
with or dispose of any of their Undertaking or any part thereof save and except in each case:

(a) if the same is in the ordinary course of business of Transferor Company as carried on by them as on the
date of filing this Scheme with the NCLT; or

(b) if the same is expressly permitted by this Scheme; or

(c) if the prior written consent of the Board of Directors of Transferee Company has been obtained.

12.5 All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company or expenditure or losses incurred or
arising to the Transferor Company, shall for all purposes be treated and deemed to be and accrue as the
profits or income or expenditure or losses (as the case may be) of the Transferee Company; and

12.6 The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Central
Government and all other Government Authorities/ agencies concerned, as are necessary under any law for
such consents, approvals and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require to carry on the business
of the Transferor Company.

13. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS
Subject to the terms of this Scheme, the transfer and vesting of the Undertaking of the Transferor Company
under Clause 4 of this Scheme shall not affect any transactions or proceedings already concluded by the
Transferor Company on or before the Appointed Date or concluded after the Appointed Date and the Effective
Date (both days inclusive), to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts,
deeds and things made, done and executed by the Transferor Company as acts, deeds and things made,
done and executed by or on behalf of the Transferee Company.

PART D

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY AND THE GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
APPLICABLE TO THIS SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND OTHER MATTERS CONSEQUENTIAL AND

INTEGRALLY CONNECTED THERETO

14. WINDING UP

On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved, without going through
the process of winding up and without further acts and deeds by parties on such terms and conditions as
the NCLT may direct or determine.
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15. CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME
This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

(i) The requisite consent, approval or permission of the Central Government or any Government Authorities,
which by law may be necessary for the implementation of this Scheme;

(ii) Approval by the NCLT where the registered office of the Transferor Company is located;

(iii) The certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme being filed with the Registrar of
Companies by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company; and

(iv) Compliance with such other conditions as may be imposed by the NCLT.

16. FILING OF APPLICATIONS
The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall use their best efforts to make and file all
applications and petitions under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, before the
respective NCLT for sanction of this Scheme under the provisions of law, and shall apply for such approvals
as may be required under law.

17. MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME
The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company by their respective Board of Directors, or any person(s)
or committee authorised/ appointed by them, may carry out or assent to any modifications/ amendments to
the Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the NCLT and/ or any other Government Authority may
deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by
them (i.e., the Board of Directors or the person(s)/ committee). The Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company by their respective Board of Directors, or any person(s) or committee authorised/ appointed by
them, shall be authorised to take all such steps as may be necessary, desirable or proper to resolve any
doubts, difficulties or questions whether by reason of any directive or orders of any Government/ regulatory
Authorities or otherwise howsoever arising out of or under or by virtue of the Scheme and/ or any matter
concerned or connected therewith.

18. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS
In the event any of the approvals or conditions enumerated in the Scheme not being obtained or complied
with, or for any other reason, the Scheme cannot be implemented, the Board of Directors of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall by mutual agreement waive such conditions as they consider
appropriate to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement, or in case
the Scheme is not sanctioned by the NCLT, the Scheme shall become null and void and each party shall
bear and pay their respective costs, charges and expenses in connection with the Scheme.

19. POWER TO WITHDRAW THE SCHEME AT ANYTIME
In the event of any condition or amendment or modification that may be imposed by the NCLT or any
competent authority, or if the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company or the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company, may find it unacceptable for any reason or if the Board of Directors of the said Transferor
Company or Transferee Company decides, they shall be at a liberty to withdraw from the Scheme
unconditionally.

20. COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES
In the event of the Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT, the Transferee Company shall bear and pay all
costs, charges, expenses and taxes, including duties and levies in connection with the Scheme.

21. MISCELLANEOUS
In case any doubt or difference or issue shall arise among the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company or any of their shareholders, creditors, employees and/ or persons entitled to or claiming any right
to any shares in the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, as to the construction of this Scheme
or as to any account, valuation or apportionment to be taken or made in connection herewith or as to any
other aspects contained in or relating to or arising out of this Scheme, the same shall be amicably settled
between the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, and the decision
arrived at therein shall be final and binding on all concerned.
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Exhibit-E
Copy of the Share entitlement ratio report obtained from M/s Mulkala & Associates 

Chartered Accountant dated July 5th, 2018
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Exhibit-F
Fairness Opinion Report dated July 5th, 2018 issued by Inventure Merchant Banker Services Pvt. Ltd.
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“EXHIBIT-H” 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS OF PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED ON 18.07.2018 AT 

THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT 4-4-211/212/3, 1ST FLOOR, 

INDERBAGH, SULTAN BAZAR, HYDERABAD-500095. 

TO CONSIDER A PROPOSAL FOR AMALGAMATION O M/S. EMERGENT BIO 

NATURALS LIMITED(EBNL) AS PER DRAFT SCHEME OF AMALGAMTION:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 230 to 232 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and in accordance with the Memorandum 

and Articles of Association of the company and subject to the requisite approval of the 

stock exchanges were the shares of the company are listed, shareholders/creditors of 

the company and the sanction of the NCLT, Hyderabad Bench (“the NCLT”) and 

approval of such other competent authority(ies) as may be applicable, the consent of 

the Board of Directors be and is hereby accorded to the scheme of amalgamation of 

Emergent Bio Naturals Limited (Transferor Company), into and with the Pharmaids 

Pharmaceuticals Limited (Transferee Company) as per the terms and conditions 

mentioned in the scheme of Amalgamation (the scheme) placed before the Board and 

initiated by the Managing Director for the purposes of identification.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Valuation Report of M/s Mulkala & Associates, 

Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad determining the Report on Share Swap Ratio for 

issue shares to the shareholders of Transferor Company pursuant to the Scheme of 

Amalgamation of the Transferor Company into and with the Transferee Company be 

and is hereby taken on record.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the fairness opinion issued by Inventure Merchant 

Banker Services Private Limited, SEBI Registered Investment Banker, Mumbai on the 

Report of Share Swap Ratio issued by M/s Mulkala & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants be and herby taken on record.” 



“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Ghisulal Jain, Managing Director, Seema Jain, 

Director and/ or Ajay Kishan Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 

severally authorized to take all the necessary steps; 

(a) To File the Scheme of Amalgamation with the BSE Ltd (BSE) and to obtain 

approval if any under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

(b) To file Company applications with the NCLT and / or such other competent 

authority as may be necessary and holding meetings of the shareholders / 

creditors of the Company as may be directed by the NCLT to give effect to the 

Scheme; 

(c) To file petitions for confirmation of the Scheme with the NCLT and / or such 

other competent authority as may be necessary; 

(d) For the above purposes, to engage Practicing Company Secretary /advocates / 

Solicitors / and if considered necessary, also to engage services of counsel(s), 

declare and file all pleadings, reports, and sign and issue public advertisements 

and notices;  

(e) To obtain approval and represent before the Stock Exchanges, Registrar of 

Companies, Hyderabad, Regional Director Southern Region, Income Tax 

Department and such other relevant Authorities and entities including the 

shareholders and creditors etc. as may be necessary to give effect to the said 

Scheme of Amalgamation; 

(f) To settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the 

implementation of the above Scheme and to give effect to the above resolution; 

(g) To sign and execute the request letters for obtaining the necessary No - 

Objection / sanction letters for the dispensation of the meetings of the 

shareholders/creditors of the company for approving the Scheme of 

Amalgamation and thereafter submit the same on receipt thereof to the NCLT 

or any other appropriate authority; 

(h) To produce all documents, matters or any other evidence in connection with 

the matters aforesaid and any other proceedings incidental thereto and arising 

there from; 



(i) To take all procedural steps for having the Scheme of Amalgamation 

sanctioned by the NCLT of Hyderabad including filing necessary applications, 

affidavits, petitions and signing, verifying and affirming all applications, 

affidavits and petitions as may be necessary; 

(j) To accept services of notices or other processes which may from time to time 

be issued in connection with the matter aforesaid and also to serve any such 

notices or other processes to parties or persons concerned; 

(k) To make any alterations / changes in the Scheme upon the recommendations 

/ instructions of any of the authority(ies) including but not limited to the 

NCLT, as may be expedient or necessary which does not materially change the 

substance of the Scheme; 

(l) To sign, execute, certify all applications, petitions, vakalatnamas, forms, 

affidavits, undertakings, resolutions and any other papers or documents 

relating to the Scheme and to file, submit, furnish all or any of such documents 

as are mentioned hereinbefore with respective authorities including but not 

limited to the NCLT, stock exchanges where the shares of the Company are 

listed, The Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad, The Regional Director, Income 

Tax Department, the Registrar of Stamps, Hyderabad etc.; and 

(m) Generally, to do and execute all acts, matters, things, deeds and documents as 

may be necessary and to take all such action as may be expedient for the 

purpose of giving effect to the Scheme. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the draft report prepared pursuant to section 

232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 explaining the effect of amalgamation on 

shareholders, promoters, non-promoters and Key managerial personnel laying out the 

in particular share swap ratio as placed before the Board and initialed by the 

Chairman for the purpose of identification be and is hereby adopted.” 

                                                                      //Certified true copy// 

                                                         For Pharmaids Pharmaceutical Limited 

 

                                                                              Ghisulal Jain 

 



“EXHIBIT-G” 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS OF EMERGENT BIO NATURALS LIMITED ON 12.06.2018 AT THE 

REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT 503, AMRUTHA ESTATE, 

HIMAYATHNAGAR, HYDERABAD-500029. 

A proposal for amalgamation of our company M/s. Emergent Bio Naturals Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as ‘Transferor Company’) engaged in the business of trading 

of Nutraceuticals products and Drug Intermediaries & Cosmetic Chemicals, APIs and 

other Extractions into and with Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited (hereinafter 

referred to as ‘Transferee Company’) through a Scheme of Amalgamation u/s 230 to 

232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Scheme’). A copy of the 

said Scheme was placed before the Board. 

It was also informed to the Board that amalgamation of Transferor Company shall be 

beneficial to the stakeholders of the Transferor Company in view of the following 

reasons:  

1. The transferor company has developed dermatology range of products which 

are patented in England and will bring the technical knowhow and marketing 

capabilities into the merged entity. 
 

2. The promoters of the transferor company are financially sound and capable to 

provide necessary collaterals to the bankers and Financial Institutions against 

the borrowings for the project finance. 
 

3. Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, 

rationalization, standardization and simplification of business processes, 

productivity improvements, improved procurement, usage of common 

resource pool like human resource, administration, finance, accounts, legal, 

technology and other related functions, leading to elimination of duplication 

and rationalization of administrative expenses. 
 

4. Greater integration, financial strength and flexibility for the Transferee 

Company, which will improve the financial position of the Transferee 

Company on a standalone basis. 

 

5. Greater efficiency in cash management of the Transferee Company, and 

unfettered access to cash flow generated by the combined business which can 

be deployed more efficiently to fund growth opportunities, to further improve 

shareholder’s value. 
 



6. Greater financial flexibility to execute on other opportunities to accelerate the 

Transferee Company’s long-term growth targets. 
 

7. Improved organizational capability and leadership through effective board, 

arising from the pooling of human capital that has the diverse skills, talent and 

vast experience to compete successfully in an increasingly regulated and 

competitive industry. 
 

 

8. Benefit of operational synergies to the combined entity in areas such as raw 

material sourcing, product placement, marketing and sale promotions 

initiatives, freight optimization and logistics. 
 

9. Greater leverage in operations planning and process optimization and 

enhanced flexibility in product offerings.  
 

 

10. Greater liquidity to the shareholders of Transferor Company since the shares 

to be issued to them shall be listed with the Stock Exchanges. .  

 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and in accordance with the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the requisite 

approval of the shareholders/creditors of the Company and the sanction of the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench (“the NCLT”)  and such other 

competent authority(ies) as may be applicable, the consent of the Board of Directors 

be and is hereby accorded to the Scheme of Amalgamation of Emergent Bio Naturals 

Limited (Transferor Company), into and with the Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited 

(Transferee Company) as  per  the terms and conditions mentioned in the Scheme of 

Amalgamation (the Scheme) placed before the Board and initialed by the Chairman 

of the meeting for the purposes of identification.”  

 

                                                                      //Certified true copy// 

                                                         For Emergent Bio Naturals Limited 

 

                                                                                 Director 
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Annexure - 2 3SE No Objection letter From BSE IJD 
EXPf':R IE'NCE '(f /E NEW 

DCS/AMAL/BA/R37/1385/2018-19 January 17, 2019 

The Company Secretary, 
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited 
4-4-211 I 212 I 3, 1st Floor, lndert>agh, Sultan Bazar, 
Hyderabad, Telangana, 500095 

Sir, 

Sub: Observation letter regarding the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Emergent Bio 
.Naturals Limited and Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited 

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Emergent Bio Naturals Limited and 
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited filed as required under SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 
dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated January 17, 2019 has inter alia given the following 
comment(s) on the draft scheme of arrangement: 

"Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company, 
after filing the scheme with the Stock Exchange, and from the date of receipt of this 
letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company." 

"Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars." 

"Company is advised that the observations of SEBl/Stock Exchanges shall be 
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCL T) 
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCL T." 

"It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCL T after 
processing and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by 
SEBl/stock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for 
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI 
again for its comments I observations I representations." 

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised: 

To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to 
the Exchange forfurther dissemination on Exchange website . 
To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid} along with various 
documents are disseminated on their (company) website . 
To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars. 

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to 
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listingfcontinuous listing requirements within the 
provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon'ble NCLT. 

Further, 1t'*lere applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the 
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted 
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated 
March 10, 2017. 

S&P~3SE 
--·--- SENS EX 

BSE Limited (Formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.) . 
Registered O ffice : Floo- 25. P J Towers. Dalal Street. Mumbai 400 00 · . 
T: +91 22 2272 1234/33 I E: corp.comrr@bseindia.com I ~Y,, • 
Carper ate Identity Number : .. L67 1'20!'1H2005~LCl!!~fJ!l1.ic.·: • .. :· 

67 

Exhibit-L
Copy of the No Objection letter received from the BSE Limited Vide there Letter. No CFD/CILE3/CIR/2017/ 
21 Dated, January 17, 2019



3SE 
EXPERIENCE THE NEW 

(2) 

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six 
months from the date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCL T. 

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its 'No adverse observation' at any stage if the 
information submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for 
any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, 
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities. 

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any 
other requirements. 

Yours faithfully, 

���ri h�7�i�!·r 

:S&P�->3SE 
----SENS EX 

SSE limited (Formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Ud.) , .... 
Reg;stet-ed Offke : Floor 2S, P J T ewers, Dalal Street Mumbaj ◄(I() Q0 . 
T: +91 22 2272 1231/33 I E:corp.c��.c 
Corporate Identity NumbeqJ,,67l20,M . 

.. � .�l:;_·:ttf:t�t2·-· 



 

 

 

 

VERIFICATION 

 

I, D.Rakesh Reddy, Director of the Petitioner/ Transferor Company residing at presently 

residing at Plot.No.5, APIIC Colony, IDA Jeedimetla, Hyderabad hereby solemnly 

affirms and state as under:  

 

I say that I am Director of the Petitioner / Transferor Company and I am well acquainted 

with the facts of the case and am also competent to affirm affidavit on behalf of the 

Petitioner Company. 

 

I say that I have read a copy of the accompanying Petition declared on even date for 

Amalgamation and I verify and confirm the contents of the said Petition and repeat and 

reiterate all the statements and submissions contained therein as if they form part of this 

affidavit. 

 

I say and submit that it is in the interest of justice that the reliefs as sought for in the 

Petition be granted in favour of the Petitioner and the Petition be made absolute with 

costs. 

Solemnly affirmed at Hyderabad      

This 14th day of June,2019          

             

  

 

 

Emergent Bio Naturals Limited                                

 

                    

          D.Rakesh Reddy                                                                       

                  Director                                                                         

(Applicant/Transferor Company)                                  



                                                    

                                                                                                        

 



 

 

 

 

VERIFICATION 

 

I, Ghisulal Jain, Director of the Petitioner/ Transferee Company residing at presently 

residing at 4-4-211/212/3, 1st Floor, Inderbagh, Sultan Bazar, Hyderabad-500095 hereby 

solemnly affirms and state as under:  

 

I say that I am Director of the Petitioner / Transferee Company and I am well acquainted 

with the facts of the case and am also competent to affirm affidavit on behalf of the 

Petitioner Company. 

 

I say that I have read a copy of the accompanying Petition declared on even date for 

Amalgamation and I verify and confirm the contents of the said Petition and repeat and 

reiterate all the statements and submissions contained therein as if they form part of this 

affidavit. 

 

I say and submit that it is in the interest of justice that the reliefs as sought for in the 

Petition be granted in favour of the Petitioner and the Petition be made absolute with 

costs. 

Solemnly affirmed at Hyderabad      

This 21st day of May,2019          

             

 Emergent Bio Naturals Limited                               Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited     

 

                    

          D.Rakesh Reddy                                                                       Ghisulal Jain 

                  Director                                                                        Managing Director 

(Applicant/Transferor Company)                                  (Petitioner/Transferee Company)                          

                                                    

                                                                                                        

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

FORM NO. NCLT. 12   

Memorandum of appearance   

 

 

To 

The Deputy Register, 

National Company Law Tribunal, 

Hyderabad Bench, 

Hyderabad, 

Sir, 

We, the Petitioner / Transferee Company, do hereby appoint Mr. D.Srinivas Reddy, 

Chartered Accountant, partner of Brand & Associates, duly authorized to, act, appear 

and plead for us in the above matter. 

 

In witness whereof, we have set and subscribed our hands to this writing at Hyderabad. 

 

Dated this 21st day of May, 2019                                      

                                                                  

     D.  Srinivas Reddy 

Partner (Brand & Associates)    

                         

           

Chartered Accountant                                                                 

(for Petitioner/Transferee Company)  

 

 

      

Emergent Bio Naturals Limited                                Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited 

 

 

            D.Rakesh Reddy                                                                   Ghisulal Jain 

                 Director                                                                          Managing Director 

(Applicant/Transferor Company)                           (Petitioner/Transferee Company) 

 


	The main objects of the EBNL/Transferor Company are as set out in its Memorandum and Articles of Association are inter alia as follows: -
	The Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company are as under:
	The authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.11,00,00,000/- (Rupees eleven crores Only) divided into 1,10,00,000 (one Crores Ten Lacs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each
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